SOUTHERN ALLEGHENIES WORKFORCE
DEVELOPMENT BOARD
MEETING
February 10, 2026
Hampton Inn, Altoona, also via Zoom
AGENDA
9:00 AM  Welcome and Call to Order Cory Sisto, Chair
Approval of Consent Agenda ltems Cory Sisto

e Minutes from November 12, 2025*

‘Executive Committee Actions®

¢ December g, 2025
¢ January 13, 2026
Staff Report

Director’s Report Jennifer Sklodowski, SAWDB Director
¢+ Review of Budget
* Red/Green Report
s Transfer of Funds Request
¢ Request for Funds
» Policy Review/RFP Update
s Adjust Date of March EC Meeting™*

Review of Young Adult Council Activities Sharon Clapper, Council Chair

Commonwealth Update Keith Baker, Assistant Regional Director, BWPO

One-Stop Operator Report ‘ Bradley Burger, Lead OSO Representative
Youth Services Presentation Youth Providers

Other Business SAWDB Members

Public Comment Audience

Adjournment* Cory Sisto




SOUTHERN ALLEGHENIES

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD

Quarterly Meeting
November 12, 2025
Held via Zoom Meeting Platform

Members in Attendance

Bob Kuiz

Brock Kull
Cory Sisto
Craig Schield
Dave Carey
David Grimaldi
Jesper Nielsen
Joshua Miller
Keith Baker

Pat McCann
Ron Aldom
Sharon Clapper
Dr. Steve Nunez
Tina Swineford
Wade Baumgariner
Wendy Melius

MEETING MINUTES

BBCLC

Manpower

IFC

OVR

AFSCME Council 83
JARI

Croyle-Nielsen T.A.
Somerset Trust Company
BWPO

Lockheed Martin
Somerset County Chamber
Clapper’s Industries

Penn Highlands

AASD

Regional Council of Carpenters 423
CCA

Non-Members in Attendance

Aaron Thomas
Apryl Dolgas
Barb Covert
Brad Burger
Carol Allenbaugh
Diane Schiosser
Gwenn Fisher
Heather Saly

Jeff Schlick

John Brennan
Jonathon Juhas
Judy Lutz

Lisa Phillips
Sarah Helman
Jennifer Sklodowski
Jill Reigh

Sydney Burkes
Tim Baranik
Carrie Fisher

Tableland Services

Rapid Response

E&T

Goodwill of the Southern Alleghenies
HCCADC

Goodwill

PA CareerLink® Blair/Bedford

PA CareerLink® Cambria County
BWPO Rapid Response

PSU

ucC

E&T

Tableland

Goodwill of the Southern Alleghenies
SAP&DC

SAP&DC

SAP&DC

SAP&DC

SAP&DC




CALL TO ORDER
Mr. Cory Sisto called the meeting of the Southern Alleghenies Workforce Development Board
(SAWDB) to order at 9:00 a.m. and welcomed those in attendance.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM AUGUST 12, 2025, MEETING
Mr. Cory Sisto asked for a motion to approve the minutes from the August 12, 2025, SAWDB
meeting. There were no other questions, concerns, or discussions regarding the minutes.

The Executive Committee Actions from the July 8, 2025, September 9, 2025, and October 14, 2025,
meetings were included in the packet.

Ms. Sharon Clapper entered a motion to approve the August 12,2025 SAWDB meeting minutes,
Mi. Keith Baker seconded the motion.

Mr. Keith Baker entered a motion to approve the Executive Committee Actions from the July 8,
2025, September 9, 2025, and the October 14, 2025. Mr, Bob Kutz seconded the motion. The
motion carried.

STAFE REPORT

Ms. Jennifer Sklodowski reviewed the budget, which remains in an adequate position within the
budget. In the beginning there was a cut to funding for PY’25 and it was a tough start. With the cut
in funding, we remain in a strong position overall.

The fiscal department has requested a draw down of the PY’25 fund from the Commonwealth. Ms.
Michele Uvegas has had to take extra steps to get the money pulled down due to the government
closing as well as Pennsylvania’s budget impasse. Ms. Sklodowski shared her appreciation for the
fiscal staff at the Department of Labor and Industry, who made sure that we received the funding
needed.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Review of Budget

Ms. Sklodowski shared that Adult funding has $132,825 in reserve with program cost and setvice
delivery. It is important to keep the reserve as such until further into the fiscal year and keep
cautionary measures in place for the entire PY’25 year. Last program year there was carryover but
with the uncertainty into PY’26 we might not be as fortunate next year.

The Youth funding came with its own challenges. Ms. Sklodowski expressed how proud she is of
the Business Services team and how well they have been doing with OJT Youth, but the funding is
low. As of Friday the service delivery funding has been suspended. She has asked the career
planners to screen any Youth interested in OJT to be screened for suitability into Adult. Funding
will be released in April for Youth and Ms. Sklodowski will most likely be asking to approve some
of the funding being pushed out.

In Dislocated Worker we remain adequate and Ms. Sklodowski is working to gain more knowledge
in utilizing Incumbent Worker Funds. The SAP&DC will be reviewing the policies and creating a




policy for incumbent worker training. There has never been a policy for incumbent worker in the
Southern Alleghenies region. When the WIOA authorization goes into effect the incumbent worker
will need to be utilized to keep the training numbers up. There is speak of 40%-50% training and
right now the training is set at 18%. Ms. Sklodowski has partnered with Westmoreland Fayette who
has shared their knowledge of incumbent workers. Ms, Janet Ward has been a tremendous help.

TANF funding is currently not available for draw down. Providers have been made aware that the
Southern Alleghenies will not be paying invoices for TANF funds at this time. Once the TANF
funding is received, invoices can be submitted for payment.

Red/Green Report

Ms. Jennifer Sklodowski referred to page one of the Red/Green Repoit, the first page shows Title |
expenditures as they are measured against the 80% expenditure requirements. Targets have been
met this guarter with the exception of Tableland with DW coming in a bit short. Ms. Sklodowski
was proud to present the report and discuss it at the Youth meeting with a strong beginning with
expenditure rates moving towards the 80% requirement.

Ms. Jennifer Sklodowski reviewed the second page of the Red/Green Report, shows the Title |
quarterly rates as measured against the 20% and the 75% WIOA expenditure requirements. The
providers are moving along nicely. Mr. Sklodowski gave kudos to the providers for a job well done.

Request for Support — Pilot RPA Fix It Clinic
Ms. Sklodowski asked Ms. Gwen Fisher the site administrator for Blair and Bedford CareerLink®
offices to talk about the request for support.

Ms. Fisher explained her, Ms. Jill Reigh, the site administrators along with other key business
services coordinators that are in the region operate the Business Services Strategy team and the goal
of that team is to look at things from an employer’s perspective, see how we’re offering and
delivering employer services and to offer continuous improvement and support. As the Business
Services Team are out in the community and talking to employers, we’re listening for their pain
points, and we ask questions to see how our services can help. Employers as for two things. They
ask for workers and more skilled workers. With 95% of the businesses in our region being small
businesses with 49 staff members or less, they wear a lot of hats right now. They have expressed
frustration around too much work and too few workers. When asked what is taking up so much of
their time it is back-end office work such as accounting issues, manual repetitive tasks that are data
entry and invoice processing, HR issues that are payroll, scheduling, time off request, shipping and
receiving functions along with other manual repetitive work. The declining workforce does not help
us produce more workers, and Mr. Brad Burger has spoken numerous times about the demographics
in our area and the decline in workforce. The problem areas can be solved with Robotic Process
Automation which is an Al robotic process automation that is a process that can be designed for
software improvements. In the past year with the help of the lead operator Mr. Burger, and with Ms.
Sklodowski’s guidance they launched a digital assistant cail K1, that we have presented to Mr. Cory
Sisto to help look at the problems and develop a report for us that would give us step by step ways
to implement solutions using robotic process automation. There were 17 employers were part of the
study, the initial pilot launch and they were all universally delighted with the reports that they were
given, giving step by step processes on how to solve some of these really pain points that plague
them regarding these manual, repetitive tasks. The next conversation with the strategy team is , how
do we help the employers take the next step which leads to the team holding a clinic to teach the




employers how to utilize the Robotic Process Automation and the request for $1,000 for support for
the clinics. The local software developer Personal Solutions developed a half day clinic for our
team. The goal is to bring in three employers and test the antomation. We will demonstrate robotic
proves autoniation in a couple of different ways and the goal is to hands on solve one of each of the
employers issues while they are there and they will walk away with steps to apply this process to
other issues they have. The clinic is to help employers develop a new skill that falls into the
incumbent worker arena, and as the Workforce Solutions professionals, we help them address their
worker shortage by consolidating and antomating some of these back room tasks. We feel this will
add to our branding and credibility. There are three partner employers identified they are trusted
partners with us. We are hoping for a December timeframe. The software is Microsoft Power

automate, which is a very common software that can be used through everyone who has Microsoft
Office.

Ms. Wendy Melius asked if the clinic will show employers how to be more efficient with some of
the existing programs that they are already using within their organization.

Ms. Fisher said that’s exactly what the clinic is.

Mr. Cory Sisto is very excited about the clinic. A lot of companies do not have an IT departments or
dedicated staff to invest dozens of hours trying to learn the software. Mr. Sisto is excited because
M. Burger had him sold on the model and now to see it implemented in baby steps of how to get it
implemented on their own. Mr. Sisto asked how many seats can be reserved. He also shared that
assuming this goes well, IFC would be happy to pay it forward and host in their area and be the
employer sponsor for if.

Mr, Craig Shield asked how the success of the pilot would be measured. Will there be a three month
after survey to see if they are still utilizing the tools.

Ms. Fisher said there will be different metrics. One goal is to have the employer to have one
solution presented already and then follow up on a regular basis. That was done with the original
pilot of KI. There was a follow up at two weeks, a month and then two months.

Ms. Sklodowski thought that once the incumbent worker policy would be in place, moving forward,
especially for PY’26 the clinic will be able to utilize the incumbent worker funding to help with
training numbers.

Mr. Jesper Nielsen made a motion to approve Request for Support — Pilot RPA Fix It Clinic and M,
Bob Kutz seconded the motion,

Approval 0 2026 Calendar
Mr. Sisto asked for a motion to approve the 2026 Workforce calendar dates.

Mpr, Jesper Nielsen made a motion to approve the 2026 Workforce Calendar, Mr, Pat Mccann
seconded the motion.




REVIEW OF YOUNG ADULT COUNCIL UPDATE

Ms. Sharon Clapper apologized for not attending in person because she was attending the UPMC
Somerset Job Shadowing day. It’s the high school rural immersion day in five different departments
at the hospital, and typically there will be one or two students job shadow at a business. Today there
are 52 students throughout the day, in the morning Rockwood school districts has 24 students then
this afternoon Somerset school district with 27 students. Ms. Clapper shared her appreciation to the
hospital for coordination of the state. Ms. Clapper was in attendance of the event with Mr. Ron
Aldom and Mr. Aaron Thomas and asked Mr. Aldom to shared his announcement.

Mr. Aldom announced that after 20 plus years on the Southern Alleghenies Workforce Development
Board, ither five on Westmoreland Workforce Board he is officially retiring. Mr. Aldom expressed
his appreciation to the board and what the board has done for the state and our region.

Ms. Clapper shared she has worked with Mr. Aldom for 20 years and he has done a tremendous job,
and she thanked him for all the activities that he coordinated, for what he did in Somerset County,
and all the hard work in our region.

Ms. Clapper gave an update on the Young Adult Council meeting that was held on November 5t
and every meeting there is a presentation. The council was happy that Ms. Brianna Pavkovich the
Director of Aviation Maintenance Technician Program at St. Francis University and she works out of
the St. Francis University Aviation Education Center at the Johnstown Airport. Ms. Pavkovich
invited the Young Adult Council to four the program and hold a meeting in one of the conference
areas. Ms. Clapper extended that invitation to Mr. Pat McCan to tour for Lockheed Martin.

The Young Adult program has started out strong and has seen 32 new WIOA youth registrations this
far, which gives a 25% increase over PY’24 during the same period. The BEP grant has provided
students o participate in different career activities, with just this quarter alone there are 606 new
participants enrolled. There have been 401 TANF youth served.

Ms. Sharon updated about the PAC meeting that was held at the Blair Convention Center, which
was a career event that was hosted and coordinated by the IU as part of their PA Smart Grant. Every
Junior within the 35 districts that make up four counties in the TU were asked to complete a survey.
The questions were centered around career interests and opportunities. They were asked to bring
two juniors that would represent each of the school districts. While coordinating activities youth
input is important with what events they would be interested in. Mr. Joe Fetzer was the keynote
speaker who was an entrepreneur coach through the Southern Alleghenies and is currently an
independent consultant. While looking at the statistics from the surveys, it was very encouraging to
see that almost 60% of the over 1500 high school juniors that completed the survey agreed or
strongly agreed that there are good paying jobs in this region for people that want to reside here.

In the August meeting Huntingdon County presenting about the Summer Youth Program. This time,
Goodwill of the Southern Alleghenies and Tableland shared their summer paid work experience with




Huntingdon included there was more worksites included, very complimentary from the work that our
students did at those various worksites and from the program supervisors.

Once of the subjects reviewed was the budget and the paid work experience and wage rate. Right
now, it is $9 an hour for TANF Youth and $10 per hour for WIOA Youth. Some of the students that
were going into different businesses because there is a higher wage rate and what the discussion of
raising the wage rate on the programs that we operate and making both TANF and WIOA the same
wage rate, The discussion was making both $11 an hour. With the budget and state impasses it was
just a discussion to bring back for further discussion at the next meeting. Ms. Clapper thanked Ms.
Sklodowski for providing the financial picture early due to Ms. Sklodowski being extremely busy
with the local plan.

PRESENTATION: PENN STATE WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT
Mr. Sisto introduced Mr. John Brennan Director of Penn State Workforce Development,

Mzr. Brennan is employed at Penn State Dubois which is closing along with other campuses in June
2027. The Chancellor of Penn State asked for Mr. Brennan to start a Workforce Development
program at Penn State Altoona. Mr. Brennan is presenting to showcase the plans and to ask for help.

There are 19 campuses across the state and all campuses in some way, have a workforce
development program, and some of the programs are robust and some are a little smaller. In Dubois
there is a large program that focuses on certain things. The website for the continuing education and
workforce development is hittps://continuinged.psu.edu/ .

Penn State’s Commonwealth Campus Continuing Education and Workforce Development network
offer accessible, inclusive professional development programs and noncredit courses to suit your
needs. With virtual, blended and in-person options available. Penn State can create hyper local
programs and if there is a need in this area Penn State can utilize their network and can setup a
program. There are degree programs and noncredit programs. The non-credit programs are for any
industry that suits the needs of employers. The Altoona region consist of 16 counties in our service
area.

Mr. Brennan say his success in the Dubois region has been mostly with local programming and
powdered metal manufacturing. Penn State created a Die Setter training which is a cross between a
laborer and engineer. It is a skilled worker who puts the tooling into the machine that makes the parts
with engineering related tasks. This is people off of the streets going through the Die Setter Training
and they learn everything from industrial math, to blueprint reading, to metrology, the measuring
part of things, critical engineering related subjects like statistical process control and geometric
mentioning and tolerancing. Penn State partnered with eleven powder metal companies to develop
what a Die Setter curriculum. That started in 2017 and to date there have been over 100 Die Setters
through the training and that is probably the single most vacant position in our region.

The different success in the Dubois region is:

1. Metal Manufacturing




a. Created the region’s only Die Setter Training
b. Development industry-specific CNC Lathe and Mill Trainings
c. Quality test prep/heat treating/industry 4.0/welding/blueprint
reading/GD& T/metrology/etc.
2. Healthcare
a. Personal Care Home Administrator
b. Practical Nursing (LPN)
3. Many HR related training, Al training, Sign Language, OSHA, Leadership, Customer
Service, etc,
Penn State offers training that can help middle managers or senior managers in any industry. There
are companies that send their entire staff through this training because it transforms their
environment and their culture. Thete are exceptional trainers in that department.

Mr. Bob Kutz asked if this is creating a degree for metal manufacturing or for welding or is it not a
degree?

Ms, Brennan explained the program is not a degree, it is to help train the existing workforce or a
potential workforce. While speaking of incumbent workers, Penn States Workforce Development
Board spends a lot of money on incumbent workers because the powder metal jobs are the eighth
largest industry in the state, and 40% of the entire worldwide industry is in Dubois and filling those
jobs is a large focus.

Mr. Jesper Nielsen inquired about who pays for the services. Does the employer, the person who
wants to be up skilled, or does Penn State pay?

Mr. Brennan said there are three different ways. There is contract training for companies who contact
Penn State and a proposal is created with training outlines, introduction to the instructor and cost.
There is money available for incumbent worker through different avenues including Webnet. In this
area local CareerLinks® will fund a portion of the cost for the training that is held twice a year.
There are open enrollment classes that are promoted in the region.

Mr. Brennan asked for ideas, instructors and partners to help develop the program and help educating
him as to what is needed. Eventually looking to develop a Continuing Ed advisory committee for
workforce outreach. Penn State anticipates a Railroad Training Center in Altoona and has had
meetings on the apprenticeship end.

Ms. Sklodowski feels it is important to partner with Penn State moving forward with incumbent
worker and why we are partnering with Penn Highlands because with WIOA reauthorization we are
going to need the training numbers and dual enroll individuals.

Mr. Pat McCann feels there is a need, not only in this area, but also statewide. There is a missing line
between the engineer and the machinist which is a programmer. The programmer will need to build
that part and it comes out of AutoCAD, 3D modeling and G code.

Mr. Brennan said what complicates it more is that there are 100 different machines situated within
these companies. Some have proprietary coding, some use standard G Code and M Code. Dubois




uses a smart machine tool, which is new to the market, but they have FANUC which has the setup,
the programming and everything along with that. It is a 70-hour training course which is a much
shorter task for someone than a 2-year degree.

Mr. McCann shared there are a number of machine shops in Johnstown which the industry is going
to grow with contracts and defense contractors.

Mr. Brennan thanked everyone for their time and is looking forward to working with the board.

ONE STOP OPERATOR UPDATE

Mr. Burger said looking at the performance of the OSO there are three types of elements that are
looked at to triangulate. One is related to efficiency and the resources put in versus what is put out.
The centers are operated efficiently as far as being mindful of the cost related to the centers, and on
an ongoing basis, tweaking them to maximize efficiency. Another element is related to effectiveness
which are the outcomes of what is done. Most are measured from outside through the state those
outcomes related to those programs that operate within this center. The third area is satisfaction.
When looking at the three elements, and the vantage points we see where the power programs are
doing that satisfaction element addresses the two main stakeholder groups, which is job seekers and
employers. At this point providers have been doing it, and it’s had some fragmentation of where we
do it, and what surveys were being carried out, and then try to pull that all together. Two of the site
administrators have been handling different parts, one is Ms. Gwen Fisher on the job seeker side,
and then Ms. Barb Covert who is handling the employer side. Mr. Burger asked them both to speak
of the data that is shown on the monthly reports.

Ms. Barb Covert, the site administrator for Huntingdon County Employment and Training and the
affiliate site in Fulton County spoke of the initiative that represents a major step forward in how to
measure the impact, that accountability and the strength of collaboration among the regional
CareerLink® sites. The team has invested significant efforts in this project throughout the spring
and summer months. The employer job fair survey truly showcases the spirit of collaboration that
defines the PA CareerLink® offices across the Southern Allegheny region. Fall 2025 will provide a
comprehensive look at the outcomes across all five counties and ilfustrates how collective planning
can show great results. Job fairs continue to serve as one of the most effective tools for connecting
employers, job seekers, including youth, veterans and adults reentering the workforce. When the
project was developed the goals were to develop a standardized approach to data collection, analysis
and reporting for all job fair events across the region. This process was also to ensure that the
CareerLink® offices that are hosting these events are using the same key metrics, and that we can
report outcomes consistently to the workforce board. The employer satisfaction survey came to
evaluate employer satisfaction with Careerlink® services to identify unmet and emerging business
needs, and that we could also address through continued engagement. Beyond the job fair, some of
the highlights of the employer satisfaction survey are that during the events, a QR code could be
used to register for the event and the day of the event to complete the survey, with copies available
at the job fair the staff can enter into the regional database. Ultimately, this initiative strengthens our
ability to tell the story of workforce impact backed by verified data that demonstrates results and
reflects the hard work our CareerLink® teams and the value collaboration of our Southern
Alleghenies region. The initiative was not only just the site administrators, but was also our reach
initiative of the region businesses service team strategy with key members from within our
CareerLinks® assisting with this strategic planning. Ms. Covert said the results represent the hard
work and collaboration of our teams, and it has been her pleasure to lead the team and facilitate this
group. This standardized job fair results process is an example of how data is being turned into




action, ensuring that every event not only connects people to jobs, but also drives continuous
improvement across the system. There is now a regional model that will be used throughout the
years to come for the job fair events, which also can provide planning and help with future
investments the success of the regional employer satisfaction survey initiative would not have
happened. Ms. Covert thanks Mr. Joe Razzo the BWPO staff with the Blair County office. Mr.,
Razzo was able to take the ideas and then put it into the survey and the QR code and manages the
regional database. He also created a step by step instructional video that went out to the teams on
how to use the QR code, how to use the database and he went over and above to make sure that
regionally we have the information we need at our fingertips.

Ms. Covert highlighted the first regional survey with the regional data came out for the fall job fairs
for the five counties. Some of the highlights are below:

e 355 employers participated
331 employers completed the survey which is a 93% completion rate
Over 1000 job seekers
70 veterans
44 employers completed a two week job fair survey
70 additional interviews scheduled

o 25 confirmed new hires

¢ 117 conditional job offers
Some preliminary information is coming in with some additional hires have been made and
interviews are still being scheduled. There is still information that needs gathered and when the job
seekers come in they are asked how they heard about the event so that they know how fo invest for
outreach efforts prior to the events. The result is of the two week survey that went out after the job
fair to the employers to see how they’re doing, what they’re hiring for, and if they could use some
additional assistance. Looking at the engagement, 54 of the employers want to participate in
industry tours, 23 job shadowing opportunities, 77 employers said they would be interested in
hosting Lunch and Learn activities through the BEP program. There were 48 employers that said
they would be interested in hosting STEM engagement activities and then 20 employers said they
would be interested in hosting virtual tours for the schools.

Mr. Jesper Nielsen said if there is 8143 job openings advertised for these fairs, and with the
conditional job offers made at 117 the success rate is 1.14%.

Ms. Covert said it is a drop in the ocean but 32.5% of the attendees that came to the job fairs across
the region were either employed full-time or part time.

Mr. Neilsen inquired about what can be done to improve the success rate. Pre-vet people better to
have matches already lined up.

Ms. Gwen Fisher shared there are workshops in advance to help job seekers because job fairs can be
overwhelming with over 100 employers. The workshops help with resume, speech, and making the
job seeker more presentable. The employers are spoken to about who they send to represent their
company due to some of the employers not being engaged.

Mr. Covert said in Huntingdon they will have a concierge for first time attendance at the job fairs.
On average each job seeker spoke to on average 6 employers. The information and the data will




help with continuous improvement and help with strategies at the job fair with our employers, with
our outreach efforts.

M. Craig Schield said while walking around the job fairs, one of the things that he had noticed was
that a lot of the employers were in the healthcare industry and jobseekers coming in weren’t
interested in healthcare. Jobseekers coming in weren’t interested in the industries that were there (o
hire. The different sectors need to be represented.

Ms. Covert said the job fair tries to target the top employers in the county and try to get the top 10
employers. This year in Fulton County Career Fair it was set up in industry clusters. If a jobseeker
wants to work in manufacturing, there would be manufacturers in one second. The industry clusters
weren’t favored by employers due to being next to their competitors.

Ms. Fisher shared that they tried categorizing every employer and what jobs they are hiring for in a
book. When jobseekers arrived they were asked what job they were looking for, and when they
explained what they were seeking, the pariners would highlight what employers were hiring for that
job.

Ms. Tina Swineford asked if there were employers that cross county lines. The Adult Ed classes
attended the job fair with one of the jobseckers showed interest in one of the employers to find out
that the company was in Indiana County and the jobseeker could not travel to the company. Ms.
Swineford was curious about the vetting for the employers who do attend.

Ms. Fisher and Ms. Covert shared they iry to keep the employers within a certain mileage or
minutes away from the job fair.

Mr., Bob Kutz inquired about representation from Indiana County for the Homer City project. The
project is the largest project in the country and needs employees. This is the largest power
generating station in the continental United States, and Mr. Baumgartner group is advertising right
and if having difficulty finding employees and wanted to know if CareerLink® is advertising as
well.

Ms. Heather Saly shared there will be a drilling conference in Indiana and can collaborate. Cambria
County hired a Business Service Consultant and can have him make connections as well.

Ms. Fisher reported that Mr. Keith Baker, with BWPO helped at the Bedford job fair and the
Bureau of Bio Statistics in printing birth certificates for 15 people at the fair. She thanked Mr. Baker
for his assistance in helping with those connections to the state. This was the first job fair they had
attended and were happy with the outcome. They developed a standardized regional way to track
jobseeker satisfaction for those people who are walking into the career. There were past surveys that
weren’t as helpful as this one because it is focused, regional, standardized approach and has helped
collect good data from the satisfaction of the walk-in customers. To date, 1180 surveys were
completed. There has been an overall satisfaction rate across the region is 98.7%. The in-person
questions services which include job search, unemployment guidance, resume help, workshops,
training, exploration, receive appointments, which is our state unemployment required visits, which
really underscores our role here as an in-person service provider. The key comments that were
received was how friendly and helpful the CareerLink® staff are. The surveys sometimes mention
staff by name and how helpful the staff was to the client. Those comments keep the staff motivated
to keep moving forward. She thanked Ms. Heather Saly for sending reports every month.




SAWDB TITLE 11 UPDATE

Ms. Tina Swineford who is with the Altoona School District Adult Education Program introduced
Ms, Carol Allenbaugh with the Huntingdon and Fulton County Child and Adult Development
Corporation and Ms, Diane Schlosser with Goodwill of the Southern Alleghenies. The Altoona
school district provides adult education programming in Blair County and Ms. Allenbaugh is the
leader of the adult education programming in Huntingdon and Fulton Counties, while Ms. Schlosser
leads Cambria, Bedford and Somerset counties.

Ms. Swineford provided a background as to why Adult Education Title 11 is important to the
Southern Alleghenies region. Title IT plays a critical role in Southern Alleghenies compliance with
the WIOA law which provides Adult Education and Skill Development classes which translates to
free GED/High school equivalency classes. The free classes are in high school equivalency,
refresher classes for those who already graduated high school, have their diploma, they have been in
the workforce or maybe not in the workforce. They are adults who want to go back to school, but
they haven’t been students in a long time. The refresher classes are to help build their academic
skills again for success in post-secondary or career training programs. ELS or English language
learner classes have recently been added for individuals who have immigrated here from other
countries and need to learn the language so they can be contributing citizens in the workforce.

Ms. Schlosser shared her program is the Title II holder in Cambria, Somerset and Bedford County
and the diplomas that the students earn come directly from the Pennsylvania Department of
Education. They do not say GED, they do say high set. The eligibility isn’t invasive as other
providers, students are asked for a social security number and if that can’t be provided they are still
eligible. The intake is 3 hours and the student can be enrolled and start classes the very next day or
perhaps later that day depending. Ms. Schlosser holds classes in the CareerLink® in Somerset four
days a week, Bedford two days a week and in Cambria there is renovations right now so classes are
held in their Even Burke office alongside the CareerLink®. They work closely with the
CareerLink® and receive referrals and the CWDS system referral system.

Ms. Allenbaugh shared that Huntingdon County Child and Adult Development has four sites within
Huntingdon and Fulton Counties, They partner with Employment and training to provide Adult
Educational Services. They are funded to serve 81 students per year, and out of those students, to
pick a success story. There were 14 students entered employment last year, and of those six was for
the very first time. There was a student who was generational and was the first person in his family
in three generations to get a high school equivalency diploma and obtain his first job. Huntingdon
County parinered to do High Set testing and this year 19 students successfully passed one or more
of their high set tests out of those seven obtained their high school equivalency.

Ms. Swineford is very proud of the students and of the program that offers critical programming and
services in the Southern Allegheny region. The number of students that have secured jobs is 107 but
it is an understated number because many of the students are coming in already working full-time or
part-time jobs and are looking for a brighter future, better jobs, and bigger opportunities for their
families. Many are trying to break that cycle of generational poverty and some were victims of
covid. There is one location in Blair County with four teachers, a Student Support Coordinator, a
Data Specialist and all are part-time. There were 117 students envolled last year with 16
participating in the English second language class. There are eight people in the morning classes
and eight people in the afternoon classes due to the small space. There were 19 individuals
successfully pass their high school equivalency and earn their diploma last year. The high school




equivalency is equivalent to the classes taken in high school. These individuals work hard to master
the material so that they can successfully pass those exams.

Ms. Schlosser shared there on average is 223 individuals a year in her three counties that get
registered and attend 12 hours of classes.

LOCAL PLAN UPDATE
Ms. Sklodowski updated the local plan with the recommendations made and the plan is ready for
approval by the state upon approval by the board.

Ms. Swineford suggested the language form the ITA policy should be adopted withing the local
plan and more specific.

M. Sisto asked for a motion to be made to approve the local plan, conditional on the plan being in
fine with ITA guidelines. The board can vote on the local plan to be approved conditional that
minor change.

Mr. Tina Swineford entered a motion to approve the local plan, conditional on the plan being in line
with ITA guidelines. Mr. Keith Baker seconded the motion.

OTHER BUSINESS
None

PUBLIC COMMENT
None

NEXT SAWDB MEETING
The next meeting of the Southern Alleghenies Workforce Development Board is scheduled for
February 10, 2026, at 9AM.

ADJOURNMENT
M. Jesper Nielsen made a motion to adjowrn. Ms. Sharon Clapper seconded the motion. The
meeting was adjourned at 11:13 a.m.,




SOUTHERN ALLEGHENIES WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING
Tuesday, December 9, 2025
Southern Alleghenies Planning and Development Commission, also available via Zoom
Meeting Platform
Altoona, Pennsylvania

ACTION SUMMARY

Following are the major actions taken by the SAWDB Executive Commitiee at its regular
meeting held on December 9, 2025, via the Zoom meeting platform.

1. Approval of Minutes from October 14, 2025.




SOUTHERN ALLEGHENIES WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING
Tuesday, December 9, 2025
Southern Alleghenies Planning and Development Commission, also available via Zoom
Meeting Platform
Altoona, Pennsylvania

Members Participating

Brock Kull Manpower

Cory Sisto IFC Services

Craig Shield OVR

Jesper Nielsen Croyle-Nielsen Therapeutic Associates
Joshua Miller Somerset Trust Company

Rosalie Danchanko Highlands Health

Non-Members

Aaron Thomas Tableland Services
Amy Horwath Goodwill

Amy Kimmel Tableland Services
Barb Covert E&T

Brad Burger Goodwill

Debbie Ankney Tableland Services
Gwen Fisher Goodwill

Judy Lutz E&T

Linda Straka Career Planner for Somerset County
Rebecca Lowry Tableland Services
Sarah Helman Goodwill

Jennifer Sklodowski SAP&EDC

Steven Howsare SAP&DC

Jill Reigh SAP&DC

Tim Baranik SAP&DC

Carrie Fisher SAP&DC

Call to Order

SAWDBRB Chair, Mr, Cory Sisto, called the meeting of the Southern Alleghenies Workforce
Development Board Executive Committee to order at 10:00 a.m. The meeting was open to the
public and available virtually using Zoom.

Approval of Minutes from October 14, 2025
Mr. Cory Sisto asked for a motion for approval of minutes from October 14, 2025, Executive
Commiitee meeting. There were no questions, concerns, or discussions regarding the minutes.

Mr. Craiz Shield entered a motion lo approve the October 14, 2025, SAWDB meeling minmutes as

presented. Mr. Jesper Nielsen seconded the motion. The motion was carried.



Director’s Report

Red/Green Report

Ms, Jennifer Sklodowski referred to the Red/Green Report and noted that this report reflects
four months of expenditures. Invoices are due on the 12 of every month. Quarterly expenditure
rates are measured against 80% expenditure requirement. At Workforce Development Board
meeting in November there was a discussion about ow providers have met their quarter target,
and providers are on the right path moving forward. Entering the second quarter of the fiscal
year, and at this point, she is confident that the benchmarks will be met along the way.

Ms. Sklodowski referred to page 2 of the Red/Green report and stated that it tracks expenditure
rates as measured against the 20% and 75% WIOA expenditure requirements. Providers are
moving in the right direction and there will be a clearer picture in January once November’s
expenditures are entered. Ms. Sklodowski shared her appreciation for providers on a job
well done.

Tri-State Apprenticeship Consortium

Ms. Sklodowski shared the Southern Allegheny Workforce Development Board partnered
with the Southwest Corner Workforce Development Board to participated and become a
member in the Tri-State Apprenticeship Consortium which consist of Ohio, Pennsylvania
and West Virginia assisting with their ARISE application. The requested amount is over
$3M, with the Southwest Corner being the fiscal agent. The goal is to build Appalachia’s
workforce ecosystem, expanding and strengthening community systems, including
education, healthcare, housing and childcare. This will help the Appalachia’s to obtain a job,
stay on the job and advance their careers.

Tri-State apprenticeships internships will increase the use of apprenticeships by businesses
and residents in the multi state labor and build pipelines into the apprenticeships to the K12
level. The letter of intent was submitted. If the grant is awarded it will be in kind and the
Southern Alleghenies will be donating in kind. The Consortium is already in place, and the
Southern Alleghenies was asked to join along with new partners.

State Compliance Report

Ms. Sklodowski and the board received the State Compliance Report for PY ’23 and PY "24
on December 2", This report measures the compliance of the WIOA formula sub recipients
in the following areas:

e  80% minimum commitment expenditure of Adult Dislocated Worker and Youth
funding in the first-year award

e  20% maximum expenditure of Adult and Dislocated Worker allocation on Incumber
Worker Training

¢  20% minimum expenditure of its Youth allocation on Work Experience

e 75% expenditure of the Youth allocation on Out of School Youth



¢ 100% full expenditure of Adult Dislocated Worker and Youth funding by the close
of Grant,
The Workforce Board is in compliance and fully expended with the PY °23.

Ms. Sklodowski will send the report to members.

RFP Planning

The board is due to send Request for Proposals for reauthorization of WIOA. The State
requested an RTP timeline for monitoring. Ms. Sklodowski tasked the Southern Alleghenies
support with the RFP timeline she created. Mr, Reigh is working on the RFP mailing list
which has almost been completed and the deadline for having it completed is December 215,

Ms. Sklodowski wants to create a project team of five individuals, with one individual
interested. She also broke out the policies between the three staff members and assigned
them each an amount of policies to review. The staff are to review the policies by December
31% with suggestions on which policy needs updated to be approved by her. The goal is to
bring those policies and procedures to the January EC meeting for approval and review.

Mr. Cory Sisto asked who the audience is and what it is for. Has Ms. Sklodowski ever done
the process before? How Intensive is it?

Ms. Sklodowski shared the RFP is for all of Title I and One Stop Operators. She has never
done the process before but does know that it is to be done every four years. She asked Mr.
Brad Burger about his knowledge of the process.

Mr. Brad Burger shared that it depends on the amount of changes in the request for the
nagrative. This process is what providers are used to.

Mr. Sisto asked if the RFP comes from the lead or does each of the organizations have fo
submit their own individual plan.

Ms. Sklodowski informed the board of the process with the organizations to submit their
individual plans. The timeline will be presented in January for approval and once the RFP
committee is organized an education session will be held to provide what is needed. The
Southern Alleghenies team will be handling everything through December, and January,
Tebruary and March will be more the board’s involvement. Between January and February
developing the RFP and providing the process, let the board committee know, and get it
completed by January 31% so the board can do an internal review, put everything online,
with everything ready to be sent. On February 111 it will be available to the public of the
Southern Allegheny region, and from that point Ms. Sklodowski will step back and the
comunittee steps in.

Ms. Rosalie Danchanko inquired about the time that will need to be spent on the committee
and expressed her interest.

The RFP bidders conference will be held on March 30® with the deadline for the RFP to be
submitted is April 15, The RFP will then be submitted to the committee on May 11,



These guidelines will follow past guidelines and on June 17" the contracts will be approved
with the contracts being executed on June 301,

M. Sisto asked while reviewing the RFP is there a uniform metric provided by the state for
these types of programs or is the process all internal.

Ms. Sklodowski shared that it is all internal and what was used in the past. Her and Mr. Jim
Walker attended a training through the Harvard Business School that provided training on
how to execute the RFP’s. Prior to Mr. Walkers retirement he had worked alongside Mr.
Sklodowski to prepare the execution of the RFP. Ms. Sydney Burkes will be the point
person for any questions or concerns. There are regulations that need to be reviewed and
updated which will be made prior to sending the RFP out.

One-Stop Operator Report

Mr. Brad Burger reporied there are three way to triangulate performance, which is efficiency,
effectiveness and satisfaction. In November, region wide, for walk in customers there was 184
surveys returned and out of a scale of 5, CareerLink® scored a 4.95 and every county reporting
at or above a 4.91 customer satisfaction rate. CareerLink® wants a robust regional presence for
the customers that need them and choose in person services versus digital services.

In line with the board Al policy and the work that has been done collaboratively with the board
staff related to the KI project of doing outreach to regional employers related to some of the pain
points they employers are dealing with, with staff, morale, retaining staff, attracting staff and
looking at tool to give them fo help them work better and to retain them. The KI project did an
outreach to a number of employers with a common denominator with reports that came back
which is having trouble moving data that has to be done manually, stress on existing staff. Mr.
Burger spoke at the Pennsylvania Association of Chamber Professionals conference in Seven
Springs, and the chamber professionals were from rural areas, and the KI project was presented
to them, and they are dealing with the same dynamics at a macro level with jobs and shifting a
lot of the professionals were having trouble with key positions and burning out staff. The first
phase of the KI project has been started, and Mr. Burger shared his appreciation for Ms. Gwen
Fisher for leading the process. With the support of the board and the economic development
partners they have piloted a Robotic Process Automation Clinic which is a small group of
employers that are going to come in with their cases on December 16%. They are going to work
with an information technology partner that was selected, and they are going to build their first
own automation and develop their incombent workers through using this technology. The goal is
to have the employers leave with something to help their staff with morale and retention.

Other Business

Adjournment
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 10:35 am.

A motion was made by Mr. Brock Kull to adjourn the meeting. My, Craig Shield seconded the
motion.




The next meeting of the Southern Alleghenies Workforce Development Board Executive
Committee will be held on Tuesday, January 13, 2026, 10:00 a.m.




SOUTHERN ALLEGHENIES WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING
Tuesday, January 13, 2026
Southern Alleghenies Planning and Development Commission, also available via Zoom
Meeting Platform
Altoona, Pennsylvania

ACTION SUMMARY

Following are the major actions taken by the SAWDB Executive Committee at its regular
meeting held on January 13, 2026, via the Zoom meeting platform.

1. Approval of Minutes from December 9,2025.
2. Approval of Review of Multiple Policies




SOUTHERN ALLEGHENIES WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING
Tuesday, January 13, 2026
Southern AHeghenies Planning and Development Commission, also available via Zoom
Meeting Platform
Altoona, Pennsylvania

Members Participating

Brock Kull Manpower

Cory Sisto IFC Services

Craig Shield OVR

Jesper Nielsen Croyle-Nielsen Therapeutic Associates
Keith Baker BWPO

Rosalie Danchanko Highlands Health
Wendy Melius CCA
Non-Members

Amy Horwath Goodwill

Amy Kimmel Tableland Services
Barb Covert E&T

Brad Burger Goodwill

Dan Hornbake BWDA Oversight Representative
Debbie Ankney Tableland Services
Gwen Fisher Goodwill

Heather Saly BWPO CareerLink®
Judy Lutz E&T

Lisa Phillips Tableland

Rebecca Lowry Tableland Services
Renee Imgrund Goodwill

Sarah Helman Goodwill

Jennifer Sklodowski SAP&DC

Steven Howsare SAP&DC

Emily Hite SAP&DC

Jill Reigh SAP&DC

Sydney Burkes SAP&DC

Tim Baranik SAP&DC

Carrie Fisher SAP&DC

Call to Order

SAWDB Chair, Mr. Cory Sisto, called the meeting of the Southern Alleghenies Workforce
Development Board Executive Committee to order at 10:00 a.m. The meeting was open to the

public and available virtnally using Zoom.



Approval of Minutes from December 9, 2026
Mr. Cory Sisto asked for a motion for approval of minutes from December 9, 2026, Executive
Committee meeting, There were no questions, concerns, or discussions regarding the minutes.

Mr. Jesper Nielsen entered a motion (o approve the December 9, 2025 SAWDBE meeting minufes
as presented. Mr. Keith Baker seconded the motion. The motion was carried,

Director’s Report

Red/Green Report

Ms. Jennifer Sklodowski referred to the Red/Green Report and noted that this report reflects
five months of expenditures. Invoices are due on the 12 of every month. Quarterly expenditure
rates are measured against 80% expenditure requirement. The invoices from December were
due yesterday, there will be a better financial picturein February’s meeting. Providers are
moving in the right direction.

Ms. Sklodowski referred to page 2 of the Red/Green report and stated that it tracks expenditure
rates as measured against the 20% and 75% WIOA expenditure requirements. Providers are
in a strong position. Mr. Sklodowski shared that during the February meeting there will be a
request to remove money from reserves to supplement for summer programs.

Review of Multiple Policies

Mr. Sisto recommended breaking the policy updates into three tranches. The first being
those policies that just have corrections of spelling, dates being updated, and policies
needing updated. The second being policies that marked for deletion. The last being the
policies that have substantial changes and those that need more discussions can be dealt with
at another period in time.

Mr. Bock Kill entered a motion (o approve the Policy Updates with Basic Corrections Such das
Grammar, Dates and Title Updates. Mr. Jesper Nielsen seconded the motion. The motion was
carried.

Policy Deletions

Mr. Tim Baranik shared The Individual Referrals for Youth Policy, which will be deleted
because it is not applicable to WIOA which was effective April 1, 2006. The policy was a
WIA Policy prior to WIOA coming into effect in 2014.

Ms, Sklodowski suggested deleting a memo listed in the regulations dated in May 21, 2012
a policy titled Regulated Selective Registration Requirements for WIA Funded Title 1

programs which had fallen under WIA and was still listed under the policy and procedures.
Another from July 13, 2004 which was Self Sufficiency which should be deleted in context
in WIOA customer flow and no longer relevant. There was another memo in July 13, 2004




which was The Flow of WIA Service policy. Southern Alleghenies are asking to rescind
these policies.

Mr. Keith Baker entered a motion to approve the Deletion of the Policy/Memos that are outdated
and not consistent with current policies amended by the State. Mr. Jesper Nielsen seconded the
moltion. The motion was carried.

Policy Changes

Mr. Jill Reigh spoke of the HPO Demand List which was a policy implemented by SAPDC
which is now issued from the state. The HPO Demand List was updated in July 2024. M.
Reigh made changes to the first paragraph to indicate the HPO Demand List developed each
year with the July 1 effective date and the policy will include reference to the Annual
Department of Labor and Industry High Priority Occupation Policy.

Mr. Keith Baker shared the Policies verbiage still showed the title of Southern Alleghenies
Workforce Investment Board

M. Brock Kull entered a motion to approve the HPO Demand List Policy update and revisions.
M. Keith Baker seconded ihe motion. The motion was carried.

The Measurable Skills Gain Policy is an update in title with a revision. Ms. Reigh was taking
advantage of the Policy that does address credential attainment, There were marks missed in year
2024 in adding measurable skill gains through functionality which has made great strides. When
there are measurable skill gains it will be added in to the CWDS database under the correct
codes.

Mpr. Jesper Nielsen entered a motion to approve the OJT Measurable Skill Gains Policy as
revised. Mr, Brock Kull seconded the motion. The mofion was carried.

The Youth Incentive Payments Policy that Ms. Jill Reigh revised and removed the gift cards
because they weren’t applicable anymore. If the participants came in on a strong foundation by
the second year they could show the improvements. The referral bonus was removed due to that
not being approved.

Mr. Sarah Helman asked if Ms. Reigh could clarify the part where it states participants may
receive a 100% incentive and on page two it states participants will receive a 50§ incentive for
credentials.

Mr. Brock Kull asked what the budget was associated with the incentives. He was concerned that
keeping the credential incentive at 100$ if there will be enough to cover all of the participants.

Ms. Sklodowski shared there is enough in the budget to serve the incentives.

Ms. Barb Covert offered a solution removing the last bullet that states participants earning a
successful attainment of an Industry Recognized credential when enrolled in the program
completion may also receive the $100 incentive. It was already addressed and is the same thing

spelled out different ways.

Cory Sisto asked then to change the $50 incentive to an $100 incentive on the second page.




Myr. Brock Kull entered a motion to approve the Youth Incentive Payments Policy update and
revisions. Mr. Jesper Nielsen seconded the motion. The motion was carried,

The Priority of Service to Access Individualized Career Services and Training Policy was to
update the financial guidelines and hasn’t been updated for 10 years. The policy will be
removed, and the board will be a reference to source material to remain current.

Mr. Jesper Nielsen entered a motion io approve the removal of Priority of Service to Access
Individualized Career Services and Training Policy and to Reference the current sources. Mr,
Brock Kull seconded the motion. The motion was carried,

Mr. Baranik was given feedback on the Work Based Training Policy and the training lengths
associated with the police. There are various types of work experience such as Youth, OJT,
transitional with each being different. With the policy being 12 weeks or 360 hours, it causes the
Youth to be short because the Youth can only work part time. The suggestion was to eliminate
the 12 week and just keep the 360 hours.

M. Sisto inquired if the 12-week policy was an internal guidance or a state limit. Would it be
more practical fo have a 12 week limit but an exception clause or to eliminate a 12 week limit.

Ms. Covert informed that the OSY have a barrier from the beginning because they are only able
to work part time, which sometimes is only 20 hours a week. She suggests that putting 12 weeks
and/or 360 hours then it can be at the counselor’s discretion. The Youth participants only work
less hours a week and more than likely will fail. Youth participants may start at 10 hours a week
and work their way up to longer hours,

Ms. Sklodowksi asked Mr. Nielsen if he remembered why the 12 weeks was chosen.
Mr. Nielsen said il was a matter of insuring that it wasn’t dragging out forever.

Ms. Sklodowski asked providers if there was ever a problem with SAPDC Board staff extending
the period when requested.

Ms. Helman shared the providers have been doing a case-by-case basis based on the needs of the
customer and to keep it a 14-week max, Sometimes that doesn’t always work with compound
and complex barriers and might need extra time to complete those hours.

Mr. Nielsen asked what percentage of Youth were able to manage completion in 2024, If the
timeline was doubled, would it take care of the problem and mitigate some of the concerns
regarding barriers that would prevent that level of time commitment.

Mr. Sisto suggested the policy should state 24 weeks or 360 hours.

Ms. Judy Lutz said there were some that would have to end prior to the hours being completed
because there are some with significant intellectual or learning disabilities and it would be
discriminatory for them not to have the same chance for them to succeed because they can’t do it

in the same amount of time.

Mr. Brock Kull shared it could be discriminatory either way and the verbiage should just include




the hours and not the week timeline.
Mr. Sisto agreed and shared there isn’t a lot of cost with anyone involved regarding compliance.

Ms. Covert questioned the transitional worker if the 480 hours was new because it had always
been 360 hours prior. The providers budget for 360 hours at $11 an hour.

Mr. Baranik pointed to the last page that the wage for Youth under the old policy it was $9 for
TANF and $10 for WIOA at the meeting it was agreed upon and voted on by the board for
TANF and WIOA to both be paid 10§ an hour.

Ms. Gwen Fisher asked how often the policies related to either an employer reimbursement for a
program or a job seeker’s wage be reevaluated based on a self sufficiency wage for the area.
With the changes of the property guidelines that the self-sufficiency wage would change.

Mr. Sisto asked if there were any policies where any type of wage structure ot reimbursement to
be reviewed every three years or with regularity or is just when it is willfully inadequate it needs
updated.

Mr. Nielsen shared it’s the ladder and it’s brought to the board’s attention to be updated.

Mr. Sisto proposed that there should be a policy that when the budget is completed annually
there should be a committee with providers and board members to review the wages and
recommend any changes.

Ms. Sklodowski shared her concerns that once the wages are raised there isn’t any way to go
backwards in case of cuts to funding.

Mr. Sisto suggested being conservative. There isn’t a guarantee there will be an increase but the
board does need to make sure annually that we are compliant with anything that is governed by
regulatory framework or supposed to be guided by poverty levels. There is a fiduciary obligation
to review the wage increase.

Mr. Baranik shared this isn’t a self-sustaining wage and is part of a work experience training
program. This is to be a steppingstone for work experience and being paid while working.

Ms. Sklodowski informed the board that last year there was a cut made to Youth and the fiscal
department is looking to balance out the Youth program and are counting on the next allocation
to come in. If for some reason those allocations aren’t awarded there is going to be a choice
between the amount of Youth we serve or wage. With the cut in Youth money were not going o
be able to serve as many Youth as prior. She likes the idea of the workgroup getting together
fiscally to review the budget. She suggested tabling this policy due to the necessary changes.

Ms. Sydney Burkes provided the updates made to the Supportive Services Policy which was
combined the Youth, Dislocated and Adult with specifications.

Mr. Sisto provided context on the policy as being services provided across several programs
consolidated info one policy.




Ms. Burkes shared the only point that was added was the maximum $500 auto repair
reimbursement,

Mr. Baranik specified that three policies were virtually the same, which then was consolidated.
The auto repair was in prior policies, but it wasn’t mentioned that the $500 auto repaid was
covered, There are participants with barriers to getting to training or work with a working
vehicle. The cap was set at $500. While looking at other Workforce Development Board policies
across the state most only have one supportive service policy with auto repair being common.
There is also a supportive service covering childcare which states: Child Care Assistance may be
provided until the participant receives their first full paycheck when enrolled in OJT or
subsidized work experience. The word full was added due to the first check usually being a
partial check.

In the Youth Supportive Service there weren’t any restrictions if they were receiving childcare or
transportation, they could continue to receive them while working, with Youth most are working
10-20 hours a week the paycheck restriction wasn’t included in the Youth portion. He
recommended putting a clause that this requirement does not apply to WIOA Youth. There isn’t
an exclusion for Youth as far as paychecks were concerned due to the minimal hours.

Mr. Sisto clarified to add that exclusion for Youth, He asked who made the decision on the
services provided, if it was the providers or state.

Ms, Jill Reigh said that the providers submit the services provided to SAPDC staff and then is
presented to Mr, Jennifer Sklodowski to present to the board.

Mr. Baranik shared services are reviewed carefully and want to help people avoid barriers.

Mr. Sisto suggested tabling the Supportive Services Policy due to the approval process not being

outlined in order for the providers to follow the process. He also wanted to add the exclusion for
Youth.

Mr, Brock Kull shared it will help against discrimination as well if it is documented.

Ms. Judy Lutz inquired about the Transportation assistance during ITA participation is available
only if the participant is unemployed and unable to secure other transportation resources. She
spoke with Mr. Jim Walker prior to retirement about adding the words under employed. Under
employed for an ITA participant per WIOA guidelines would ensure the participant is receiving
services.

Mr. Jesper Nielsen asked about how under employed is defined. There would have to be very
specific guidelines to determine under employment.

M. Sisto suggests reviewing when brought to the full board meeting to add unemployed or
under employed according to WIOA guidelines.

Ms. Imgrund under employed falls under part time but also could fall under the self-sufficiency
wage and the verbiage would have to be specific. There are guidelines through WIOA to define
under employed.




Mr. Sisto referred to the Monitoring and Oversight QA Policy and asked for a motion for
approval of the revisions and updating the dates and names.

Mr. Jesper Nielsen entered a motion to approve the revisions and updates to the Monitoring and
Oversight 04 Policy, Mr. Brock Kull seconded the motion. The motion was carried.

Ms. Barb Covert suggested this type of policy is something that Title II programs do with Adult
Education while doing their monitoring and risk analysist. They also share the score with
providers. This Policy can be built into the continuous improvement plan, professional
development for the team to help providers. This will help with the Risk Analysist monitoring
from the state, it shows those opportunities already accomplished to eliminate any risk or issues
before that monitoring visit. She asked that Southern Alleghenies share our monitoring with
program operators and give areas that can be potentials to do continuous improvement.

One-Stop Operator Report

Mr. Brad Burger provided an update on employer and customer satisfaction in December
remained high. While looking at data for the region and he is beginning to see a tension point
between Real GDP and employed persons that is reflective of lower productivity. Clients have
come back from the pandemic at a steeper rate than Real GDP going up which means
productivity is not going up proportionate to the clients entering the workforce. This goes back to
the work that the board has been doing providing the Robotic Process Automation training
opportunities for employers to help with incumbent worker training. There does seem to be a
growing tension within productivity. From a historic standpoint it decupled many years ago
where GDP was going up at a faster rate than employed people. At the national level there is a
decupling right now between smaller workforces and productivity going up. The discussions
about the incumbent worker support types of training adopting various hardware and software-
based interventions to help expand that labor footprint is good timing. The Blair CareerLink®
that resides at the Altoona library that is on the school district campus, the lease is up mid-year.
There is a process with criteria as to where to put a CareerLink is where the heatmap shows the
highest usage in an affordable place and that there isn’t a commitment to being there forever.
The process involves collecting data, looking at costs because every dollar spent in CareerLink®
is a dollar taken from direct services which all the partners contribute to the CareerLinks®. They
begin a negotiation process and then take it back to the partners to show where the numbers are
coming from, then it is up to the partner’s approval. They are in one of the cycles currently with
the Altoona School District. Mr. Burger just wanted to reassure the board that they do a lot of
back-end math, data crunching and negotiating. In some cases, they can be very complicated. In
Bedford it took months to find a place to make the financial model work. They do rely heavily
on the input of the partners in the actual center of being responsive from the customer service
standpoint to their needs.

Commonwealth Update
Mr. Keith Baker shared on January 8" the House passed a partial funding package of the WIOA
Reauthorization to avert another shut down but is unsure what will happen after January 31%.




He spoke on the TEGL 10-23 Work Authorization Verification that was issued in July. WIOA
states, “Participation in programs and activities or receiving funds under Title I of WIOA shall
be available fo citizens and nationals of the United State, lawfully admitted permanent residents
aliens, refugees, asylees, and parolees, and other immigrants authorized by the Attorney General
to work in the United States” BWDA is finalizing Impact Analysis which includes changes to
CWDS and changes to process in offices. This loosely translates to verifying if the participant is
legal 1o work in the United States. BWPO will have access to UC SAVE system but only as a
last resort and all other methods to verify legal status must be exhausted. BWPO is waiting for
BWDA to release their Impact Analysis before putting anything into action. They suspect there
will be a drop in CareerLink® traffic.

Mr. Jesper Nielsen asked if there was a specific verification process to be followed.
Mr. Baker answered not that he has seen yet.

Ms. Gwen Fisher asked if there would be a conflict with the CareerLink® equal opportunity
actions in the facilities. CareerLLink® employees are to help anyone who walks in.

Mr. Baker said that BWDA is looking into it.

Ms. Renee Imgrund asked if it was everyone who walks into the door or is it just WIOA services
and pointed to the WIOA Self Attestation with Quality Assurance/Continuous Improvement
policy that states they don’t have to verify the Social Security number. The policy is inaccurate.
With the EEO 1 having to sign it and is thinking that won’t be good enough moving forward.

Mzr. Baker said that will apply more to data validation.

TEGL 05-25 Maximizing Innovation in Workforce Innovation and Opportunity ace is to better
serve job seekers and employers by providing state and local workforce development systems
waiver opportunities, to promote flexibility within the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity
Act (WIOA) formula funded programs and supports the Administration’s workforce priorities
outlined in Executive Order (EO) 14278, preparing Americans for High-Paying Skilled Trade
Jobs of the Future. Basically L&I will give states opportunities to request waivers around some
of the policies to be more flexible with what they do.

M. Baker asked Ms. Sklodowski what the protocol for the local board to get a waiver from the
state.

Ms. Sklodowski said there has been talk about it, and there is form to apply for that waiver,

M. Baker updated about the Workforce Reimagined. What COVID has taught us was that there
are services to deliver anything directly to the consumer. Which L&l developed Workforce
Reimagined with a virtual CareerLink® that is in the works. There is an online case management
software that helps case manage online and as the process was started the office of
administrations OIT put a halt to it because that system that UC procured can only provide
access to the commonwealth staff. The CWDS person in the borough is looking at another
system that looks like OAOIT will approve it. They haven’t defined it yet but they are looking
for them. The Workforce Reimagine groups include:




e Digital Intake Redesign is a kiosk to input information. This was to collect demographic
information and barriers information.

Communications

Marketing

Personnel/HR

Policy & Procedures

Statewide Workshops

Training

¢ Virtual CareerLink®

The Technology needs face barriers by COPA and partner staff due to inability to share
technology. There needs to be prioritization of seamless service delivery over rigid IT policies
with things like Google Docs, Sharepoint and Local software choices. The good news is that
BWPO staff will be getting CoPilot.

Other Business
None

Adjournment
There being no further business, the meeting was adjowrned at 11:37 am.

A motion was made by Mr. Jesper Nielsen to adiourn the meeting. Mr. Brock Kull seconded the
molion.

The next meeting of the Southern Alleghenies Workforce Development Board Executive
Committee will be held on Tuesday, March 10, 2026, 10:00 a.m.




- $ - 3 - $ - $ - $ - 3
%8666 89°/81°898°G g - ¢ 69°¢£0'660°L $ [ SP'091°8€9°L $ | 05°09L°2/8° L § | vO'£EZ8SL'L $ ejoL
%98'9 0Z'£28'20% s - $ | 09°0£.726 g ievgezezl %1 09696'cs ¢ |/6v2e2eL $ anlasay
%00 00°15%'2 s - $ - $ 100/18 $ {00218 $ [o0ZL8 $ SIUBLISSISSY 1BIS YUON
%100 00°00¢ s - $ - $ 10000l $ | 00°COL $ [ 00001 $ SIIDLUSSISSY B 35USDIT SADHIOM
%L1 9 00°168'98.°¢ s - ¢ [00'8E5'8¥8 & | 00GREZ¥E & | 00'vZLLLE  $ | 00'¥EE'RS0°L $ NEIVETSESTVET
%8l L 00°vOY' LEY s - $ [ 009lL'Ly ¢ [ooevo'lrl & | 0026L'86 sloosv0'iprl $ «81800 BugeladQ jupsale)
%020 00°000°Z) s - $ - ¢ [ooco0'¥ $ | 00°000't $ | o0000F $ WNIHOSUOY) Youeesay Jeisni) Aisnpuj
%LL0 00°000's¥ s - $ - g [00°000°6L  $|00000GH $loo000sL $ S90IAISS oAnJoddng
%E L 00'90%'82 s - $ - g [oo'goz'ee  $| 009019 3 [ 00zZeo'or ¢ suoreblao 1Mo ¥ZAd
%Y5 S 00°000'62¢ s - $ - g [ 00000621 $ | 0000062 $looo00sel  $ 1ro
%S¢0 00'9£9'ylL s - $ - $ | 005042 $ | 00'2Z6S'S ¢ [ 009g’L $ suoneBigqo Bullel ] ¥ZAd
%00"F 00°000'6€Z s - $ - ¢ [ 00°000'6.  $| 0000009 ¢ | 0000000 $ Builel).
%C9'6 81 95+ 785 s - ¢ | 60B8LLLL S| 2092598l $|0688%L¥L S| ZFLBOBEL $ PIBME JO %0 | I UoieISIUILPY
IeJoL 30 %
89°/81°898°S e $ 69°¢£9°660°L S| SP'09L°889°L $ | 05°09L°CLE° L § | PO'EEZ8SLY § FIGVIIVAY ONIAONNA
- g - $ - ¢ [(00°000'008) $ - ¢ [ ooooo'coE % HIAASNYHL
1£°286'628'L sl - $ [eociz’szz S| voleser., $|609bbese | 6pLos'ley ¢ PZAd NOH- MIAOALEYD
L8602°ZP0'Y s - ¢ [0009czze ¢ | L¥e6EPBLL S| L YLL986  $ ] GGTLEL9E0') $ piEME JO 9,0 I8 UDRRIISIUIWPY
ONIANNS V1oL alodo ANVL HIHHOM HLNOA 1nav
galvo0o7sla

920z ‘0¢ sunp Buipug Jea) ayy o4
Arewwng jabpng
ealy Juswdojaaaq 20J0PIOA SolUBYDaly uiapnog




%00 1L %0895 695759 & BSWESE  § | ¢SL¥Oy S |- 5] oN] - S - 5 - S ON|Z0L0v S Bovec S _v90Gr 8 | SIA| LITES S 650%rl S Zvivrl S 0OLZEL8 S IeloL
%OY'SLL %SET6E 864’96 § TOTE mE ! !me._ 82T 9L's m_ 108'74 516'28 ez Wk $ puele|qeL
%6L69 %ESS  06L'EYL  § UT6'L8 $ E ! !mmm.o_ £8L'L 052’8 ! 7109 202'5g z95'ey lgv'sal S 2ul'153
%LO'Le  %LE'ey  L86'BOY  § 62€'79T aE I! !amm..& 25792 26022 Q.&m.ﬁ Zv5've £980L eUrIIS  § MOEED]
juel

KA
AN

ot

SRR

e e
b""“"" 0’ ¥

%i7SS  %LEeS 975 6i6C S GOLEBLE § LIBEZSE S - 5 & g = 5 - 3 8S6'262 § 690'S6C S L9GBYT S 6Z6'CSC § ZZLLVZ § BASPPT § ZE6MLEZT §  VIMTIVIOL
%LLEL %L0'BS  ¥85°0§L & EZS'VBE m_mmm_nmm l. i oz_. g - § - n_ mm._,_ P08 § erll8 § 5L9°08 m._ mmj BE¥'90l S SS806 S GLE'WE § ZEM'BEE S [eloL
%EL09  %SLer  SLLBLT  § ovl'ivl mE ! ! 158'v2 96v'Ze £89'SZ Qmﬂ.a Ze6'%L £EL'E) LBE'ELT puefeiqEL
%ylEL  %LLLS BLU'BFL  § Lze'ss § Hj IoF ! Q 18L'6} s58'2h 100721 ! lal'gl L 050'eZ lB6E'sBL  § ou) ' L83
%9L'Z8 WELSS  8lLEBE & gge'esl mE ! !mom.# z6e'9y 52828 !Nnmw 10L'Ls €625 86E'aLy S 1iMpaoD
LANoA
%g0'8S  %EY'Gy  002'49L § BSLELS m_uﬁ.mﬁ m_. m_ oz_. s - g - m_ mE,_ LETY6  § £99'LL S ELB'WL w_ mw>_ £2'89  § 0P€'0L § 22869 § 000656 S [eloL
%68°8F %LL1'BE  00Z6EL § T¥E'SOL g mma”mm” HM_ ! !mmm.: 0LL'0k 628'4L !mt..ﬂ ¥82'5 ZEL'LL aoo'vir pueja|qeL
%e0'9S  %EEYy  00Z'LET  § BSY'ESL mE ! !i@om 65£°0Z 861'02 !m_.m.mr 892'3} 985'0Z 000'682  § 2193
%L¥Z9  %EEBy  008'96E  § LSE'8yZ S [Ev9LRE S ! E BSL'LS PEL LY 98L'ZY Qﬁaﬁm LTy POLVE 000's6¥ § iMpoog
mg
%9o¥I  %ELLS  26L'LI8 & vZe'seY ﬂ 916725 m_- mﬁ oz_. § - g - m_ m.e._ 08560 S €99'l8 S EES'ER m_ mml £LL'6L § L8998 S O06E'PE § OvLwIO'h § [EloL
%GY'LS  %ZL'9y  008'%ZL  § vSO0'vE § E ! ! 82E'TH £L5°04 9E9'Z) ! L09'eh £ie'oL S6¢'ZH 000'ssk  § puejelgEL
%5095 %EAPy  008'v0Z  § POZYL S E ! _u_ 158'ce Zzo'al vi8'LL ! £0L'LL £09'LL £96'12 bo0'ssz  § 2ul'193
%El'0L  %LL'9F  Z6l'Eer  § 985'pSE § [vIVeee ! _M_ Lov'eL 89055 £2T'ES !maw.: 1ZL'8s 256'6Y orL'eos  $ IMPOOD
Unpy
J050% V099§ WBJCL %08  9@ENery QLA WWny  dunr dx3 FENOXS Ty dx3 WEGLUID UOTNO%S  Gogoxg  Uerdxg  ROIEL§lD J9gdx3  AONGX3 WO OXx3  woieldlp esox3  Bnyaxg  Amroxg Wbpng  pund/IopiAcid
050 % ebpna
%
ly9'egl S [8e9’l8L § 008 § Gv8'Z0Z §| IeIOLPUng Gv5Z9 S ¥96'€9 § 059'L5 §| [eloLpund
G¥0¥ZC S |B6L9¥s § 00BFe § 0024 § | PUERIGEL] Gzz8r S 009+ § COVOF §| PuEe@El
I607€ §|6l2Zc § 00845 § 00248 § 53| SZrel S 926k § S04k S 133
S6vcdl S| 0B9GE § O00ZE6 § 8PS 02k § [ZCEE) TE6'LE § Lo0EE § evOF S TIVALHOHS
JUEL oinex g IApY SIGETE] | qngx | BV SISBIEL 139¥VL NO
Apouenn Ao

ANIWIFINDIY FANLIANIIXD %08 LSNIVOY AI4NSVIN SV
SILVY THNLIANIXT ATHILAVND ¥IAINOHC | TLIL SZTAd



%63 BL %088 TrreuL CTEPRE 5 _ £99't55 S m - s - 5 - m_ N _ $ - $ - i EEIN M W08 S RSB S 5L9'08 mm S3A img,maw § SSEOE & GLEWS § ZBLGEE  § UINDA YOIMiRleL
%0Z'+a %ELEr 870'602 [FINE T E E E lsg'vz 9o¥'2T £89'5Z E 955'78 Zes' 7l £ELEL Heee % puejolqe L
%5892 %bLLS FBLBEL 1ze'sL  $[9Lszor S E SSA ] IBLEL 35921 £00°24 E 194's) L 050'Z JLUE TR 2yl 153
%y LR %EL'SS 864'85¢ 9s6'Eet % ﬁ«a.””zn” § E E BUS'SF Failog:1d 52678 E 2zi's9 0L LS 26425 BeE'sLy  § 1MpOOS
ASG - HLA YOIM

B T0ITE VORI T6l FOEIWEY  URUmAY  OLA WDy N eRg MO eNE  JyOYS wonRl TAemOXs  gOoJORy UEEERY ol ok NGRS PBOOKg RUNT  Wosexd  Pivoxs A oxg RTPrE PURIIIPTROId

%S h6e ETEED 9E5°i8L § BEBLL m_us.om_. m_- 5 - F - m_ ON _ [ s - mw EETS Mﬂw.ﬂ. § 00v8l § S¥SLiC i 53A T.\m..\m § 09 tc  § ZveRt  § ZOLAEE § UINOA WOIMIRIOL
%B0" %TT'E BI9'VS % TEE'0FET mE E Em@.m 896'C BEE'Y Emmm.m S6'E 2R 6867 8 PUTIOGEL
%PEECL WLl 8.2'te  § BEYYEL $[ESLE S E SIX | 266'L 588'9 500° Emﬁ_? {sL'T} 106'12 LT A oul ‘g3
%56 B8 HOR'LH 089'56  § I5Z'EEE § E E Emmhm 5L #65'SH a4 ) £08'0E 836'02 ovv'al LB § (]
X3 42050 - HLA YOIM
pUDEE g o GOIEL 740, IgENeAYy LK WWRS  SURFURE W ORg Ayors ool GOUTWORT  god ang roa-C R | S Te I AoN U3 Doax3  Wony W@oFaxy Inwasy  AEraR Ty FURI/IGPIAGId
TR5]0 Y, TOEpRg R o 318 HIB TNoX YOI

LLE'SLL § DIE'BY  §| [melpund 4ET'BS S LE9'SL  $i vlolpung

915§ GLOLL & PUCPEEL T80LF 5 LS9 5| PHERAEL

B¥EYE S 026§ PEE] CEG L & lDKE 8 pE]
D068 5 GEBEC L) 00662 § EL6L 5 TIWALAOHS
[GEITASO (L5l Syaure] 1958VL NO

CHIXYEIRR  9ETom AU

~RIX VoA

SANIWIHINDITH FUNLIANILXT VOIM %SEL B %0Z LSNIVDY QIHENSYIN SV
STLVY FUNLIANIAXE ATHILEYND H2AIA0Yd | 3TLIL £2Ad



Southern Alleghenies Workforce Development Board (SAWDB)
Incumbent Worker Training Policy

POLICY Incumbent Worker Training
B NEW | REVISION
PURPOSE To provide guidance on Incumbent Worker
Training
DATE APPROVED BY SAWDB KXHKHXXK 01-13-2026

The Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act of 2014 (WIOA) allows and encourages incumbent
worker training. The board, in conjunction with the local employers or groups of employers of
incumbent workers which may include employers in partnership with other entities for the purpose of
delivering training, are permitted to assist in funding training. The training must help workers to obtain
skills necessary to retain employment or avert a layoff; increase both a participant’s and a company’s
competitiveness; and be conducted with a commitment from an employer to retain or avert the layoff(s)
of the incumbent worket(s) trained. The funds used will be a part of the Board’s regular adult and
dislocated worker allocations.

Training support provided through an Industry Partnership will count toward the WIOA’s plan
requirement that local workforce boards support Industry Partnerships that operate within the local area.
To receive Incumbent Worker Training, an incumbent worker does not have to meet the eligibility
requirements for participation in career and training services for adults and dislocated workers under
WIOA., unless they are also enrolled as a participant in the WIOA adult or dislocated worker program.

Eligibility Criteria for Training Services — Must be documented for approved training

1. Employer considerations:

a. The strategy of the board in fulfilling the vision and goals established in the local plan;

b. Employee characteristics such as the extent that the employees historically represent
individuals with barriers to employment as defined in WIOA Section 3(24), and how the
individuals would benefit from a skills gain that results in retention or advancement;

c. The quality of the training (e.g., industry-recognized credential, advancement
opportunities, etc.);

d. The number of participants the employer plans to train;

e. The wage and benefit levels of participants before and after training;

f.  Occupations must be in-demand as defined by WIOA Section 3(23) and local area labor
market information produced by the Center for Workforce Information and Analysis
(CWIA);

g. The employer should be in a stable, in-demand industry as determined by CWIA labor
market information. If in a declining industry, there must compelling reasons to justify
the investment such as the long-term viability of the employer.




h. The employer must not have laid off workers within 120 days to relocate to PA from
another state;

i. The employer must be current in unemployment insurance and workers compensation
taxes, penalties, and/or interest or related payments.

2. Incumbent worker considerations:
a. Employed and meets the Fair Labor Standards Act requirement for an employer-
employee relationship;
b. Has worked for the employer for a minimum of six months.

Employer Payment of Non-Federal Share

Employers receiving support for incumbent worker training are required to pay for the non-federal share
of the cost of the training. The WIOA allows the local board to establish the amount of the cost share in
accordance with guidance that pertains to the number of employees at a local operation. The cost share
for incumbent worker training is established as:

1. 10% cash for employers with less than or equal to 50 employees
+:2.25% cash for employers with up-te-51-100 employees; and
2.3.50% cash for employers with more than 100 employees.

The employer size is determined by the number of employees at the time of the execution of the
incumbent worker contract and applies to all employers including those with seasonal or intermittent
size fluctuations. The size of the employer may be substantiated by information provided by the Center
for Workforce Information and Analysis (CWIA), current Labor market Information, the employer
website, or a size range available through data provided by CWIA.

Contracting Requirements

The board will use the Southern Alleghenies Planning and Development Commission contracting
procedures to secure training. The IP employer members can determine the training that they would like
to receive and select a provider. The SAPDC will then enter into an agreement with the provider for the
federal share of the training cost. Employers will also be required to sign a training agreement that
reflects their obligation to pay the training provider directly and agree to the collection and
dissemination of performance information required to substantiate the training progress and employee
eligibility.



Southern Alleghenies Workforce Development Board (SAWDB)
Supportive Services Policy

Adulg, Dislocated Worker & Youth

POLICY Supportive Services Policy

o NEW H REVISION
PURPOSE To ensure success for Adults, Distocated

Worker and Youth engaged in selected
WIOA Training or Work Experience

services
DATE APPROVED BY SAWDB December 12, 2023
DATE REVISIONS APPROVED BY January 13, 2026
SAWDB
POLICY

Unified Supportive Services Policy (Adult, Dislocated Worker, and Youth)

PURPOSE

To ensure successful participation and completion of Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act
{WIOA) services by eligible Adults, Dislocated Workers, and Youth by providing supportive
services that reduce barriers fo training, work experience, and employment.

APPLICABILITY

‘This policy applies to individuals determined eligible and enrolled in: - WIOA Adult Services -
WICA Distocated Worker Services - WIOA Title I Youth Services

Supportive services are available while participants ate actively engaged in approved WIOA
individualized career services, training services, work experience, or on-the-job training (OJT).

A per-person supportive services cap of $4,000.00 applies across all service categories.




SUPPORTIVE SERVICES AVAILABLE
1. Childcare Support

WIOA funds may be used to assist with childcare expenses for eligible participants engaged in
approved WIOA or Trade-funded training, OJT, subsidized work experience, or individualized
training accounts (ITA), subject to the following conditions:

Participants must be enrolled full-time in training, OJT, subsidized work experience, or
ITA services.

For OJT and subsidized work experience participants, childcare assistance is available
only until the participant receives their first FULL paycheck. This requirement does Not
apply to participants in our Youth program.

Participants are required to apply for Child Care Works and all other available childcare
subsidies prior to receiving WIOA childcare assistance.

If eligible for subsidized daycare, participant co-pays will be covered through WIOA
supportive services.

For participants not eligible for subsidized care, reimbursement is limited to $2.00 per
hour, per child, with a maximum of $14.00 per child per day.

Reimbursement is limited to actual time spent in class or at work, plus up to twoe (2)
hours of travel time,

Childcare must be provided by a registered daycare provider or eligible relative
(excluding parents of the child).

Dayecare providers may be paid directly on a monthly basis, or participants may be
reimbursed with appropriate receipts. Any cost difference is the responsibility of the
participant.

For care provided by a family member or friend, a completed W-9 form is required prior
to payment.

Career Planners are responsible for:

o Seeking alternative childcare resources when available (e.g., Department of
Human Services, Head Start)

o Verifying all childcare documentation, including W-9 submissions
Collecting class schedules each semester childcare is requested
o Completing and submitting invoice documentation to SAP&DC

o]

2. Transportation Assistance

Transportation supportive services can be used for:

Van Service

Bus Token, Bus Pass

Automobile Repair

Automobile Mileage Reimbursement



Transportation assistance may be provided to support travel to and from training, school, work
experience, or OJT sites, subject to the following:

Assistance may be provided until the participant receives their first FULL paycheck when
enrolled in OJT or subsidized work experience. This requirement does Not apply to
participants in our Youth program.

Transportation assistance during ITA participation is available only if the participant is
unemployed and unable to secure other transportation resources.

Mileage reimbursement will be available for those traveling more than 10 miles round
trip and is based on the distance from the customer’s home to their training institution or
work site. The rate of reimbursement will be 80% of the Federal standard mileage
reimbursement rate for automobiles; calculations for mileage reimbursement will
begin with the 11th mile traveled.

Auto repairs (for essential components like brakes, tires, batteries, etc., with a $500.00
lifetime cap. Auto repair is for immediate need when the vehicle is the one available to
the participant. Auto repair can only be used when the vehicle is needed for participation
in employment and training activities or for the participant to pursue employment goals
as part of an active IEP or ISS. This maximum $500 Auto Repair reimbursement will be
included in the $4,000 per-person Supportive Service cap referenced on Page 1 of this
policy.

Transportation assistance is paid on a monthly basis.
Career Planners are responsible for completing and submitting all required invoice
documentation to SAP&DC.

3. Implement Allowance

An Implement Allowance may be provided to offsct costs of items that enhance employability or
support the transition into employment. Allowable items include, but are not limited to:

Professional or work attire

Tools and equipment

Professional or commercial certifications
Driver education

GED festing

Personal hygiene items (Youth participants)

Conditions include:

Career Planners must assess the participant’s needs and document the service in the
Individual Employment Plan (Adult/Dislocated Worker) or Individual Service Strategy
(Youth).

Participants will be counseled on cost-effective options and alternatives prior to purchase.
Assistance may be provided through gift cards, gift certificates, or direct vendor
payments.



e Participants are required to submit all purchase receipts.

o Ineligible purchases will be deducted from future needs-based payments.

o Career Planners are responsible for completing and submitting invoice documentation to
SAP&DC prior to purchase of allowable items listed above.

e A $400.00 lifetime cap applies to the Implement Allowance. This $400 Implement
Allowance will be included in the $4,000 per-person Supportive Service cap referenced
on Page 1 of this policy.

ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS

e Supportive services are provided based on documented need and availability of funds.

o Services must be reasonable, necessary, and directly related to participation in WIOA
activities.

e [fadditional training-related funds become available, supportive services may be
expanded to align with state-approved guidelines.

POLICY OVERSIGHT

Career Planners are responsible for ensuring compliance with this policy, maintaining accurate

submitting a Supportive Service Request Form to SAWDB for approval. SAWDB staff reserve
the right to request documentation and/or receipts validating cost. mileage, etc. of supportive
service requests. SAWRB staff will review the request and forward to the SAWDB Director for
final approval. All documentation in CWDS and the file must be clear and consistent on what
was provided. Services entered should match all case notes and documentation.

- [ Formatted: Strikethrough




Southern Alleghenies Worldforce Development Board (SAWDB)
Work Based Training Policy

POLICY . Wark Based Training Policy -

NEW | REVISED X

PURPOSE To outline the work-based related services.
DATLE APPROVED BY WDB January 14, 2020

DATE REVISIONS APPROYED BY January 13, 2026

SAVWDDB

The Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WHOA) authorizes several Work Based
Training options that may be utilized, as appropriate, to assist job seekers to re-enter or advance
in the workforce. The following programs may be used by the Workforce Development Board
(WDB):

On-the-Job Training
Transitional Employment
Incumbent Worker Training
Registered Apprenticeship

Paid Work Experience for Youth

General Guidelines

1.

1.

Eligibility of Participant

Any individual considered for participation in work-based training must have been
certifted as eligible and recommended through a PA Careerk.ink® of the Southern
Alleghenies as appropriate for such training. Any work-based training agreement must
be implemented prior to the participant’s first day of work. Intetnships or Paid Work
Experience with a clearly defined end date may be considered at later daie for an QJT.

No employee hired under terins of a work-based training agreement may displace,
including partial displacement, any employee currently cinployed as of the dale of
participation.

Participants in Incumbent Worker Training ({WT) must be determined eligible according

1o the guidelines set forth in the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act WIOA Desk
Reference for IWT. 008

Eligibility of Employer




No work-based training agreement will be authorized for any organization or part theveof
that has relocated until 120 days afier the date on which such crganization begins
operations at the new location if the relocation of such organization or part thereof results
in a loss of employment for any employee of such organization at the original lecation.

The work-based training agreement must niol impair existing contracts for services or
coltective bargaining agreements. In order to assure the integrity of colleclive bargaining
agreements, the signature of a designated union representative, indicating awareness ihat
the work-based training agreement is in place and that they have the right to comment to
ihe WDB relative to any problems bearing on the bargaining agreement, is required on all
work-based iraining agreements covering positions represented by a collective bargaining
agreement.

A Work Opportunity Tax Credit may not be taken at the same time for the same
individual participant as an active work-based training agreement.

Work-based training vendors must disciose any potential conflicts of interest with the
Title 1 service provider.

The WDB will not authorize work-based training for occupations whese tips,
commtissions, bonuses, or simifar methods of payment provide the primary compensation
to the participating employee.

The WDB will noi authorize agreements with employer vendors who have previously
exhibited a pattern of failing {o provide participants with continued long-term
employment with wages, benefits and working conditions that are equal to those provided
to regular employees who have worked a similar length of time and are doing the same
type of work. The WDB will not authorize agreements with employers whose past
performance is such that they can reasonably be expected to adversely affect the WDB’s
ability to meet and exceed the Performance Measures agreed to in the course of
negotiations with the State Department of Labor and Industry (L.&I) and United States
Departiment of Labor {USDOL). In making determinations with respect to an employer
vendor’s continued suitability, the WDB shall consider whether work-based training
employees quit voluntarily, were terminated for good cause, or were refeased due to
unforeseeable changes in business conditions.

On the Job Training
General Guidelines

The number of allowable OJT training hours is determined by the Specific Vocational
Preparation code (SVP) for a named occupation. The maximum length of an OIT is six-
months. Bvery OJT participant must have an individualized training plan that addresses
specific skill gaps and competencics that require training,

The SVPs are a set of codes developed by the US Department of Labor, The SVPs are found
in occupation specific data within the O*NET and are used to estimate the amount of
education or training that is necessary to enter into an cccupatien. Service providers are
expected to use the SVP Codes in conjuaction with employers {o develop training plans, The

2




SVP code dictates the “maximum” number of allowable hours and providers must consider
any previous participant experience when developing the training plan.

The hourly rate and employer reimbursements for adult, dislocated worker, and youth
OJT participants will be set according to the following scale:

Adult-DW:  Equat to or greater than $13.80 hr, and Tess than $14.37 hr. = (40%

reimbursement)

Equal to or greater than $14.37 hr. = (50% reimbursement)
Youth: Equal fo er greater than $10.00 hr. and less than $11.00 = (40%

reimbursement)

Equal te or greater than $11.00 hr. (50% reimbursement)
The reimbursement for Salaried positions that are paid hourly will be calculated on the
company’s definition of a full-time work week. For example, if 35 hours is considered futl time,
the annuaal salary divided by 1,820 hours (35 x 52 weeks).

No fee may be charged to the participant or the employer for placement.

It is allowable for QJT contracts/master agreements for positions that require a license, such as
Commercial Driver’s License, to provide for the actual on—the-job experience and training.

The allowable hours may be modified on a case-by-case basis upon review of the employees past
work history and formal training.

Payments to ecmployers with multiple OJT participants will automatically be suspended
temporarily if any participant is terminated until the circumstances of the termination have been
clearly determined and reported to the Board.

Participant Eligibility

No family members, previous employees, or current employees are eligible for the program.

All employees selected must be eligible WIOA applicants and the employers have the right to
review potential employees utilizing their own company procedures before making a final hiring
decision.

Confracts/Master Agreements are developed by the Title I Providers and submitted to the Board
staff for review. No employees are permitted to starl an OJT experience until the coniract/master

agreement is approved by the Board.

OIT participants cainnot be hired to replace any current employees or to fill positions vacant
through layoff or work stoppages.

OJT participants must be hired for full-time positions defined as at least 30 hours per week.



Employer Eligibility

The employer must agree to compensate an OJT participant in the same manner that similarly
positioned employees are compensated. The OJT participant can be compensated at a higher rate
based on merit or other factors; however, the reimbursement will be based on the base rate for
the position within the company.

Employers will be reimbursed based on the number of actual hours worked and will be paid only
for the actual hours the employee is engaged in productive work which provides knowledge and

skill essential to the full and adeqguate performance of the job. No payiment will be made for sick
days, vacation, holidays, or non-OJT training time.

The employer must show proof of Worker Compensation, or equivalent protection for each
employee covered contract/master agreement.

The coniract/master agreement must be a fixed unit cost agreement and adjustments will not be
made during the term of the agreement without the written approval of the board.

The maximum reimbursement rate for all employers is set at 50% of the howrly rate for the
confracted OJT position untess there are discretionary grants with modified reimbursement rates.
In that case, the discretionary funds may be used to supplement the 50% reimbursement rate
using the rates ouilined in the discretionary grant.

The Board will not authorize contracts/master agreements with employers who have previously
exhibited a pattern of failing to provide participants with continued long-term employment with
wages, benefits, and working conditions that are equal to these provided to regular employees
who have worked a similar length of time and are doing the same type of work. Neither will the
board authorize agreements with employers whose past performance is such that they can
reasonably be expected to adversely impact the Board’s ability to meet and exceed the Board’s
negoliated performance measures, In making suitability determinations, the Board will take into
consideration issues such as contract/master agreement compliance, whether QJT participants
quit voluntarily, were terminated for good cause or were released due to unforeseeable changes
in business conditions, continued wage growth, participant satisfaction, and any other factors the
board determines. The Board will not authorize a contract/master agreement for an employer
that is under suspension or debarment.

The Board will not authorize training for individuals employed through employment staffing,

employee leasing, or organizations unless the work those individuals perform is solely for the

benefit of the employing organization.

Quality Assurance

All OJT employers will be monitored for compliance by the Board stafl through the use of on-
site visits, phone interviews, employer surveys, review of payroli records and participant file

reviews. A report of each monitoring visit will be kept on file with the Board,

The Board reserves the right to approve OJT congracis/master agreements that exceed 825,000,




Transitional Employment

Transitional Employment will provide time-limited, wage-paid work experience for individuals
with chronic unemployment or inconsistent/limited work history. No more than 10% of the
Adult or Dislocated Worker WIOA Title I allocation will be used to support this service.

1. Participant Eligibility

Transitional Employment (TE) will be available to eligible participants in the SAWDA
who are determined eligible under the WIOA (Adult or Dislocated Worker) and the
Employment, Retention and Advancement Network (EARN) Temporary Assistance for
Needy Families program.

o An individual is considered chronically unemployed or to have
inconsistent work history if the individual, within the last two years, has
not worked steadily, has had differing skill and wage level positions
(contract, temporary, permanent, etc.) or has held numerous jobs.

2. Employer Eligibility

A transitional job may be within the private for-profit, non-profit, or public sectors and
preferably in a high-priority occupation. Employers who host transitional job
participants must have an executed and current Transitional Worksite agreement with
the provider and designate a person to provide supervision and feedback to the
participant. Participating employers must agree to monitoring requirements set forth by
the workforce board regarding WIOA and all other local, state, federal workforce
regulations and guidelines. Participating employers are not obligated to offer regular
employment at the end of the program.

3. Training Length

The minimum length \\{l!l be 4 weeks ~and the maximum transmonal employment

Work l:.;\perlencc Worksite A grcemem must be executed and current for all Fmployel
host worksites of the Transitional Work Experience program prior to participant
placement at the work site.

4. Wage Requirements

The Title I program provider will be the employer of record and pay an amount equal to
the pay of a similarly situated employee at the targeted business but not less than the
federal minimum wage or exceed $14.37 (the subsidized wage rate for the OJT program
in the region). Shift differentials, overtime, premium pay and other non-regular wages
will not be considered.

The transitional employment wage will be paid only for the actual hours the employee is
engaged in productive work which provides knowledge and skill essential to the full and

[ Formatted: Font color: Black

- {Formatted: Font color: Black, Strikethrough

[ Formatted: Font color: Black

[ Formatted: Font color: Black

| W | S—




adequate performance of the job. No payment will be paid for sick days, vacation,
holidays, classroom training hours, etc.

5. Supportive Services

Supportive Services as appropriate and within the guidelines of the WDB Supportive
Service Policy must be offered and made available to participants enrolled in TE.

Incumbent Worker Training

Incumbent Worker Training is designed to meet the requirements of an employer to retain a
skilled workforce or to avert the need to lay off employees by assisting the workers in obtaining
the skills necessary to retain employment. It is expected that the employer will commit to retain
or avert the layoffs of those workers trained.

Employers must pay a share of the training cost based on the following:
=/< 50 employees = 10%

51 to 100 employees = 25%

>100 employees = 50%

Apprenticeship

The SAWDB may support apprenticeships with either support for the cost of related technical
instruction (RTI) or for the hands-on portion of the training. RTI support will be treated the
same as Individual Training Accounts and the hands-on training will be supported in accordance
with the On-the-Job Training guidelines referenced above.

Paid Work Experience for Youth

Paid Work Experience (PWE) for Youth is time limited with the specific outcome of providing
youth exposure to possible careers and the requirements and expectations of employers for their
employees. Work experience is fully subsidized by the contracted youth program — no cost is
incurred by the employer; however, it is expected the employer will provide supervision to the
youth participating in work experience at their work site.

1. Funding
Paid Work Experience for Youth (PWE) will be available to participants of the PA
CareerLink® sites in the SAWDA who are eligible under the Youth WIOA funding
stream and to participants in contracted programs funded with the TANF Youth funding

stream.

2. Training Length

The maximum length of a specific work experience js12-weeks: will not exceed 360 aant [Formatted: Strikethrough

hours. A youth may participate in multiple work experiences.

3. Wage Requirements



Youth Work Experience providers must pay at least the Pennsylvania minimum wage.
Wage rates may vary depending on the funding stream. The current wage rate for both
WIOA and TANF participants is $10 per hour,




3410MI3U_IBIUSDGOUBdLISWY 3U) Lo Jsunied pnoud v

UQISS|WWOod
juawdopzasp

9 Gujuueid jeuciBas
8y wisyuou

m.a.._< juawdo)ansq 32400 B co_mwm Aq seau40

urjioaie)

elueAJASUUDd




QN 0oL 0
09 uoyn4/uopbuiuny
aL -
09
109
18519W05
es euqued
ejg
198 6LC
P3|40.d YIS @ suois|dwo) visTie

\ 000'L D
e 1
EE plojpag
8.8
09 &
0zs 18513W0S
I
1S W
. LSE uoy|n4/uopbuuny
oLe
vo W
618 euqued
s’ Em
06 I
P i sssme ol
LPE'L
662 08l'e 9ZTYy

PaAISS SURIDIBN @ IDIAISS PIPPY SN[EA@ PanIas siuedpdived @

%

S32IAI9S juedidilled

/

émEmmmmm,q Aniqibn3g g se31ades ucmE\moEEwmm\

/

/

MU J2IURDgOoruelLISWY Ay} o Jauned pnoid
b A2jusDq M\\ eyt P v

v353y puaxe 0} pajyosd Uaaq ney Jey suewIe D PAIYOId VASIH

-Bunasw 231u3s 19yl pa3a)dwod jey sjuediied yISIY 4O Jaquiny ssuonajdwo) vasId

"SAMD uil suolensiBas dnys mau Jo Jaquuny suonensiBay vd dnis

“a31A19s abUeYDX3 JOGET B PaAIFIa 18Y) SUBIS]3A anbiun JO JAqUINN IPIAIIS SUBIIIN

"BDIAJAS PIPPE aN|eA B paAladal jey) sjuedpiued anbiun :pIppY @njep

-adinas abueydxg Joge e paniadal Jeyl spuedpiped anbiup ipantas juedpnied
*a21A13s (D7) 12LIU0D) |e207 B Paaladal 1eyl sueddiped anbiun aoeIu0D O [0
(SaMD) wayshs Juawdojonad 010140 Y3{CIMUOLILLOY 132IN0S 23 SUOKIULAQ

4

™,

.

%Ly 00%'2E 00s'L 008'0€ 18s18Wos
%L'S 00L'6L 000'L ooL'gL uopbununy
%St 00L'L 00e 008'9 uoyng
%8Y 00L'9S 00L2 00¥'ES elque)
%0 00L'9S 00€'z 00S'¥S 4e|g
%9 00622 000'L 008'L2 plojpag

¥n axo4uioge pedojdwsun  pakojdwsy Auno) M

(VIMD) SISAIDUY 79 UGHDWIOJU] 32J0/I0M J0) J31U3D Y[ - DIog

Auwnasd g paisnipy Ajouosoas ‘woiboid (SNv7) SoNSNDIS JuawAojdwaur) basy 10207

/

GZ0Z Jequaidas - uoljew.ou| JaxJej Joge]

I933end pug
soTusybaTIY uxayanos
seooTAI9S juedroTiaedg

Jurjieared)\

elueA|ASUUS]

\ (ueig)

18301

suoensIBay Vd udNNS

L%
\ 8z¢g's

1ej0L

J
=

Plojpagd @
19519WOS @
BUQWED @
“yni/uepbununy @

1@
a0

(%v¢€) L08'L —/

\—(%L1) 209

10BjUOY 22140 18207

.




00¥ 00z 0

per

1aypeny) pug
6.2

L9S 6L2
pa|uoid YISTY @ suoiadwo) vIsIYe

ﬂ:mEmmmmm,q Au1qibng ® s921Al3S EmE>o_nEmm<

e /

000'f 0002 0

66¢

ogL's Jsyend puz
9ze'y

662 ogl'e 92Ty
Pa/IaS SURIDISA @ IS5 PIPPY SNjeA @ Panas sjuedidiled @

sadlIAlag jueddilied

\ J

JIoMisu IalUSDqoruedIawWY ayl 4o Jeuned pnoxd v
*_

w353y puane 03 pajyoid usaq aAey eyl SJUBWIEP DN PRAJYold YISIY

‘Buiesw adIss J1ayl pajajdwod 1eyl suedpiyed w353y Jo Jequny ssuonajdwo) vasay

SAMD Ul suonensiBal dn| b m3u Jo Jaquiny suonensibay vd dniipis

"301u3s 3BURYDXF JogeT] © Paniaal Jeyl suelalaa anbiun JO JaqUINN JPIAIIS SURIAIBA
“3DIAISS PAPPE AN|eA B PaNa23d jeyy sjuedidiped anbiun :pappy 2njeA

-aniuas abueydxg Joge e pantedal 1eyy suediiued anbiun :pansas Juedpiued
331A13S (3]) 1DRIUGD (D07 B PaAiadal Jeyy suedpiped anbiun goeguc) 3240 R0
(SaMD) wa)shs Juawdojanaq I2I0PMOM Y3[2PIMUCWILLOCY :B2IN0S 7R SUoRIUYAQ

\

/

.

Apuwnaid i paisnipy Aouospas ‘wolboid (sNy'T) sausnpls wawhojdwaun paly 10207

%LY 00'ZE 005'L 008'0¢€ j9siswoes
%L's 00L'6L 000'L ooL'sl uopbununy
%Sy 00LL 00€ 008’9 uojjnd
%8 00195 00L2 00v'€S euquie)
%0'¥ 00.95 00€C 00S'¥S diejg
%9¥ 00622 000°L 008'L2 pioipag
dn 22404 Joge] pakoidwaun  pakojdw3 funo) M

(VIMD) SISAIDUY 79 UCHDUWLIOJU| 321044J0A J0) J21UBD) 3y - DIBg

/

§z0z Jequaidas - uonewlou| }9¥)dep Joge

Isaxend puz
soTusybsTI¥Y ux=ayanos
S0 TAISDS juedroTiaeg

Surjieared)\

elueAjAsuusd

\ (fuerd)

18100

-

suonessibay vd .dNiMs

/

/" see

1e30L

-

(%001) gZE'S —

19BJU0Y 3210 18207

/

Jsuend puz @
pollad awg




L'l

N\

000°L 0
6 !
gLg uoyn4/uopBununy
901
BL |
£9¢ piojpag
08L
se
SOy 135J3W0S
ol
vl
oLL'L ] eLques
vPE
9 B
Jiejg
255
LEL S09°c §erlL

S[eLia43y HeIS @ S|eudRY 495 @ SBunsod qore
sbBulysod qor

%
-

2.9

R

N\

00s
=61 euquie)
L jes19Wos
L9g piojpag
267 o
uojn4/uopbuuny
296°L €CL

sa21uas Jakojdw |e1o) @ panas siafojdwig

-

.

S321A19S Jakojdwg

J

Jdomlau dalua)qoruedllawly syl Jo Jsun ed U:O.ﬁ Av
*_

eI JuUraaseD) vd Aq Buiisod qof e 0} pauagad siuedidiued Jo JaquINN S|e4RY Hels
“urpealeD vd ayi uo Bunsod gol e o paydde jeys syuedionued Jaquiny sjewsasay J1es
“31ISQaM JUraale) yd oluo palajua sbunsod qol map sbunsod qor
"SAMD QUi PRIBIUS SIPRIUCD 11O YOIM M3U JO JBQUINN :LFO
'SAMD Oui PaIajua SIDIAISS JO JAQUINN SIS Jakodug
‘SAMD Ul 9IS © PanaDal Jey) siakoldwa anbiun jo Jaquin - pantas ssakojdusy
‘SAMD Ul pausisiBas siakojdwa mau Jo Jaquinp ssakojdwz man
(SAMD) wayshs Juawdojpnag S2I0PHOM YIEIMUOWIOY 132IN0S 78 SUORIUYSQ

/

SoL'L 699°L 992 lielg
ate £eS’L 6.8'L euque)
90 1474 6¥8 jesiswos
L€ )43 £89 piojpag
8.1 62E £0S uopBuiuny
¥ S8 BEL uo}ng
sbunsod sbunsogd
abueyd qor ¥202 qor 5202
Jeap-aUl-JarQ JaqUIBAON JaquianoN DYO
(VIMD) SISAJDUY 72 uonouLIoju|
22UQPIION JOJ JDIUZT - WLBUITUO PRILDAA d)oH - ISDIIYEIT - pIpOg 23uBIaUOD YL
(IW7) sBulisod qor ¥IMD K

Ioj3Iend puz
soTuaybaTTyY ursyinos
sooTATDS IohoTdury

Surjieare))

elueAjAsuusd

7l /
18101
— (%9€) §
euqued @
piojpRg @
uoyny/uopbununy @
PsPwWos @
Jeg @
(%Er) 3 L) 20
9  (9%2) L©

(LrQ) Bulured) -qgor-ay1-ug

N

/
™

— (%ee) 9
. uoyjng/uopbununy @
ploipeg @
eLqWED @
1951305 @

e @
2YOo

siafojdw3 patsisibay AimaN




e

N

~

000 0

3 |

Japeny puz
Syl

LEL S09°¢ geylL
S|elIalay YelS @ S|eLalay J|as @ sbunsod qor@
sbulysod qor

.

\ 0002

J
/

000'L 0

Japeny pug

296°L
sa01as Jakoldw3 [el0] @ panss siefoldwz @

€ZL

S921A13S J8Aojdwg

J

10MISU_ID]UDgOoruedLIa WY syl Jo sauped pnoid
3 uaDq h,...\ Yoyl s P v

‘$e18 Juriaaled yd Aq bunsod gol e o pausel spuedipnied jo Jaquiny iSjeLRIeY JeIs
“Jurjiaale) vd ayy uo bunsod gofl e oy paijdde jeyy suedipiped Jaquuny :sjeLayay J19s

‘BYUSGIM S{UITI33IRD) Y Cluo pasalua sBunsod qof maN sBunsod qor

‘SAMD O3u! PRIBIUI SPPRJUOD IO YOIM M3U JO JBQUINN LrO

SAMD OIUl PRISIUA SIIAISS JO JAQUINN 5321Alas sakopdiug

'SAMD Ul 3d1as B panadal Jey) siakojdwa anbiun jo Jaquinp - paatas siakojdws
'SAMD Ut pasaysiBal s1akojdwa mau Jo Jaquiny :szafojdury maN

(samo) waeyshs Jusawdojanag 9210PHOAN YI[S2MUOWIWIOY) 1324N0S 78 SUoIUYaq

\

-

B2UOJNIOAN S0 JAIUDD - [N 1BUNTUO PAIUDAA d)aH - 150D3YEIT - piDOg 92Usia{U0D YL

/

14 g8 6EL uoyng
8Ll 62¢ L0S uopbununy
LEE =143 €89 plojpag
90% 3744 er8 josiowos
9FE £€es'L 6.8'L euque)
SoL'L 6SS'L 99'2 diejg

sBunsod sbunsog -

abueyn q0r +202 qor 5202
1BIA-3YI-I3N0 J2qUIRAON JaquisAoN ERl1TTe)
(VIMD) SISAIDUY 79 UORDULIC)U|

(IW1) sBunisod qor YIM3

/

Io3IEeNd PUZ
mmﬂﬂwﬂm@HHﬂ ureoyilnosg
seoTAaxDsS IoAhoTdury

Jurjisaied)\

elueAjAsuusd

\\qﬁ

18joL

(%001) ¥1 =

(Lro) Buiures] -qor-ayL-ug

Japend puz @
PoudRd dwLL

8l
18j0L

N

(%001) 81 —

siakojdw3 passsifay AipmaN

J
/

Japuend puz @
pouag awiy

J




195 6.2 |e3oL
9L €2 195J3WI0S
09 aL uoyn4/uopbununy
Z8L 88 euqwe)
€81 ¥eL liejg
09 8z piojpag
pajyold YISy suonR|dwoD vasIy Cale)
sawaybayy ussyinos
(v3s3ay)

/EmEmmmmm,q Aiqibn3g B s921A13S EmE\ﬂBQEmmmK

4 )

662 0gL's 9ze'y [e3oL
09 0zs g5 19sJ9WoS
LS LSE 0L6 uoyn4/uopBbununy
¥9 618 £€6 elqwed
06 0sL'L LPE'L diejg
143 PEE 8.5 plojpeg
panas ERIINELS panias
sueidlsp  pappy anjep  siuedpdiped 22Wo

sawaybajy usayInos

S921A135 juedidijled \

3JoMIBU JRIUSDGOTUBDLIBWY ay} 4o Jauned pnoid v
ke

w353y puane o} pajyoid uaaq aaey 1ey} sUBWIR DN PO YISTH
“Buissw 301es 1yl paledwon eyl ssuedidiped w3say jo Jaquinp ssuonajdwo) yasay
*SAMD Ut suchiensiBal dn|is mau Jo Jaquiny :suogensibay vd dnipis
*301Mas 9BURYIXT JOGRT © PAAIIDAL JRY3 SURIIIAA ANbIUN JO JAqUINN SPIAIDS SURIIIA
*32IAIIS PAPPE anjeA e paaladal jeys ssuedpiped anbiun ipeppy Injep
‘21435 abueydX3 Joge e panadas jeys ssuedidiped anbiun :paasas ueddiued
“31A35 (D7) 1983U0D [e20] B paniedal Jey) ssuedpiped snbiun goejuo) S34Q Je20]
(SamD) weisAs Juawdo|anag 92J0POAN YI[EIMUOWIWO) 192IN0S 78 SUORIULAQ

- N

%L¥ 00%2E 00s°L 008'0¢ }esiawos
%L'S 00L'6L 000°L ooL'sL uopBuguny
%S 00L'L 00t 00g'e uolng
%8+% 00L'9S 00L2 00F'es eliqued
%0% 00L'9S 00£2 00S'vS Jdiejg
%9¥ 00622 000'L 008'Le pojpeg
¥n @204 .oqe] padojdwsun padojdusg Aunod

(VIO sisAjpuy 19 uonow.oju] adiofyIop Jof J23uad ay) - DIog Apulwnald
2 paisnipy Ajouospas ‘woiboid (Sny7) sonsnois wawlojdwauny paly 10207
\_ (IW7) B180 SNV1/92104 J0geT VIMD )

Isjxend puz
soTuaybaTTY uIdyY3lnos
sooTAISS juedroTixeg

Jurjieared)

elURA|ASUUD(

suoneusibay dnjpis wu_.tm

saluayba)y uiayinos
suoijel)sibay vd .dNnMs \
82¢'s [eloL
629 SESEIES
vz’ uoyn4/uopbununy
280'L euqued
L08’L Jiejg
209 ploypag
JPRIUOD IO [B207] BP0
sawaybayy ulayinos
1oBjUO0] 22140 18207 \




feloL
Jayend) puz ®

195 6.2
195 6.2

pajyold ¥3SIY suons|dwod ISy

pouad awi|
sauaybayy urayInos

(V3as3y)
CcmEmmmmm,q Amgqibn3g B saoialss EmE>o_aEmmm\

4 A

[ejoL
Japenp puz @

9z
9ze'y

08L°E
08L'E
panas 20IAIRS panas
suela}ap\ peppy anjep  swuedoiped

662
66¢

pouad awi|

sayuaybayy uraynos

Sa21Alas jueddilied

/

HOMIBU JB3UBDGOrULeILIBWY au3 1o Jauiled pnoid v
*_

V353 puane 03 pajyoid uaaq aney el sJUBWIR]> DN (PRAYId VASIH

‘Bunsaw ad1nas J1ay) paredwod ey siuedpnied yas3y 4o Jaquuiny suonajdwod yIsIy
"SAMD Wl suonensiBal dNjIbS MU 30 sequinp isuoiensiBay vd dnlibis

-301As5s 95ueYDX3 JOqeT] B PANAISJ JEY) SURISIAN 2nDIUN JO JBUINN :PAIAIIS SURIIIA
‘IIAIDS PIPPR INjeA B PAASR Jey) siuedniyed anbiun :pappy oanjen

“9a1nas abueyoxg Joge e pantedas eyl siuedidiped anbiun jpantas Juedidiuieq

921D (D) 198300 [D0| B PaAlenal Jey spuedoiued snbiun 3orguo) 221440 [e307
(SAMD) wishs JuawdoPnag 240140 YIRIMUOLUIWOY :FIINOS 71 SUoRIuYaQq

1/

\

%Ly 002 00s°L 0080¢ losiswos
%L'S 00L'6L 000'L ooL'slL uopbuuny
%St 00L'L 00g 0089 uoyng
%8y 00L'9S 0oL’z 00v'ss euquen
%07 00L'9S 00£'2 00S'7S dielg
%Y 00622 000°L 008tz piojpag
¥N 92104 Joge7 pakoidwasun pafojdwy Auno)

(VIMD) SISAIDUY 29 UONDWLIOIU] 3203100 40 423U87) 3| - DI Albuiwnald
/vm paisnipy Ajpuospas ‘woiboid (SNyT) SIRSRDIS WwawAojdiwaun valy Eug\

(IW7) B1eg SNvT1/82404 JoqeT VIMD
Io3xend puz

soTuaybaTTY uxsayjlnos
sooTAax9s juedroTiaed

qurjisaied)

elueAjAsuusd

suonensiBay dnjiis S90 POUSd SwiLL

mm.Emco.mz_q.EmcSom
suonensibay vd wdNldiS J

e
-

82g’'s jeloL
629 195J2WO0S  J3yuen) pug
L'l uo}nd/uopbununy Japeny) pug
280°L euque) Japeny pug
Log'L dlelg  Japeny pug
209 plojpag Jauend pug
10BIUOD) 32O |8007 mu_.tm pouad awi]

saruaybayy usaynos
JoBjUO0] |21 18207

N J




LEL S09'c ser'l |ejoL
SE So¥ 34 1ssiawos
6 £LE 90L uo}n4/uopbunuNH
14 oLL'L e euqued
¥ rLYL 288 leg
6L £9¢€ 0glL pJoipag
s|eLaey Jeis s|euayay s sbunsod qor mu_.tm

sawayba)y uiayinos

sBunsod qor

.
-

/
.

296°L geL JeloL
eve 08 1951805
2.9 gge uoynd/uopbununy
sel 28 euquie)
z6r 8sL diejg
L9g SEL plojpag
saoas Jafojdw3 B30l panas siadojdwg mu_tm

sayaybayy ulayinos

saoiAaleg Jakojdwg

)

J40oMIBU I9IUDDGOfULRDIISWY 3Ul Jo sauped pnoid
*__~

YIS AUrPaaIeD) Yd Aq Bunsod qof e o3 pasajas sjuednled Jo Jaquing sjeuajay Jels
SuIasse) vd 8yl uo Bupsod qof e 03 pajdde jeys syuedidiued Jaquiny s|euazay §|9s
*3}sqam juIjiaale)) vd cuo pasajua sbunsod qol ma :sbunsod qor
‘SAMD O}UI PaIAIUa SIDeAUOD 1O YOIM MaU JO JaqUINN 110
‘SAMD OJUl PRIIUI SADIAIDS JO JAQUINN $A0NaS Jakojduwy
"SAMD Ul IAIIS B Pan@Ial Jey siakojdwa anbiun jo Jsquiny - pantas ssakojdwy
‘SAMD Ul paIsIsiBal sishojdwa mau Jo Jaquiny ssiekojduwg maN
(sam?) waysAs JuawdoEnaq 2400 YI[EIMUOLIWO) :324N0S 78 SuoRIuyaq

e N

¥S S8 6el uoyng
8LL 62€ L0 uopBununy
LEE o9ve £89 pJojpag
0¥ 13744 68 18siaulog
9vE £ES'L 6.8'L elqued
SoL'L 655l 992 diejg
sbunsod sBupsogd
abueyd qor ¥202 qor s20z
FEETR-THSETY) JAQWIAON  JAQWINON PO

(WiMD) sisAipuy ig uonowLolu|
UOLYIOM J0f J3IUID - WLBUITUQ PAIUDM d]3H - ISDIYEIT - pIDOg 22U2J3fu0D YL

\_ (IW7) sBuisod qor VIMO J
Io3xEend PUZ
soTusybaTTY uasylnos
sooTATDS IaAoTdury

urjioaie)

elURAJASUUS]

.

vl 218
S 195JaW0S
Z  uoyng/uopbununy
0 eLquie)
9 diejlg
L piojpag

b g
1o O

saaybayy wiayinos
(Lro) Buiutes] -qor-ay 1 -ug J

\\

-

/

L 2301
195I3W0S

uoynd/uopburuny

euquied

liejg

piojpag

siafojdwz man muEm

o oMo wvulw

sayuaybayy wiaynos
siaAoidw3z maN \




LEL
LEL

S09°€ szv'L
S09'€ Sey'l

Ie10L

Jauenp puz @

S|eliajoy YeIs S|eudpdy yjas sBunsod qor

sawaybayy wiayinos

sBunsod qor

poliag awi|

N
4

296°L
296°'L

€2L
€L

.
™

[eloL
Jayenp puz ®

saoiuas Jakojdws [e1o]  panas siakojdwg

sajuaybayy usaynos

s921AdaS Jahkojdw3

polad awi]

J

J4OMISU JDIUDGOFULBIIIBWY au3 Jo Jaupied pnoid v
*_—

“J3eIS QUIIBaIRD) vd Aq Bunsod gof e 0y pauayal syueddiyed jo Jaquinp isjeuaey yels
2Juiaale) vd 3y} uo bunsod qol'e o3 paijdde jey: spuedied Jsquinp sjelsasay 9S
"YSTIM JUNJaaIeD vd cluo pasaiua sbunsod qol map :sbunsod qor
'SAMD 03Ul paJalua 51PeRUO) LIQ YOIM Mau JO JBquIn :1fO
'SAMD CJUI PAIBIUA SADIAIBS JO JaqIN Sadiass Jakojdwg
‘SAMD Ul IS @ Panadal jeys siakojdwe anbiun jo Jaquin - pansas ssakojdury
‘SAMD ul pasalsibal siafojdwa mau o Jaquinp suafojdwz may
(samd) wayshs Juawdojenad 92401400 YISIMUOWIWOY 132IN0S 73 SUORIUYSQ

~ a

90 v 618 jesiawog
8LL 62¢€ L0S uopbuiunH
7S S8 6EL uoyn4
1743 £€9°L 6.8'L euquien
SOL'L 695°L 992 diejg
LEE 9ye £89 plojpag

sbunsod sbunsod h

abueyd qorye0z  9or 202
1B9A-3Y}-1an0 Jaquanon JagquIanoN BIWO
(VIMD) SisAjouy 32 uonDwIolu]
324010/ JOf JBUBD - WLIUTTUQ PRIUBM djap - ISBDIYDIT - pipog a3uaiajuol ay)
S (IW7) sBunsod gor VIMI -

Is3xend puUZ
soTUSYbSTIVY uIxayjinos
sooTAIDS IoAoTdury

Jurjieaied)

elueAjAsuusd

[el0L

SEDIEMTEIS
uoj|n4/uopbununy
euque;

Jiejg

piojpag

— W O N Wn

Jaueny) puz
Japen) puz
Jayeny) puz
Jayenp) puz
Jaueny puz

1ro 20
saiuaybagy usayinos

(Lro) Bujuies] -qor-ay ] -ug

pouad awi]

J

N

~

[e30L

}esiawos
uoynd/uopbuguny
euque)

lefg

piojpag

o O Mo w

lapenp pug
Japenp puz
Japenp pug
Japend puz
lapenp puz

siafojdwz maN muEm

sajuaybajpy uiayinos
siafojdwg maN

pouad awi]

)




_ﬁy

sajuaybayy usByINos

3MYQ B YAM ‘uo1bay Aq sed1Alag Juedidiiied 1Y

7 POIyuId vISI SIS S U Y WS
£7 suonadwo? vasay 1950W0S  saluayba|ly wsLpnes
85y panss syuedpined 19509W0S  ssiuayBs|y WwayInes
629 PEINOT SO [807] jesiawos  seluayBa)y uByINoS
15 pasag suRIalRn  uoynd/uopbununy  sawayBay wWaLInos
ISE 2OIISS PAPPY Snjen  uoynd/uopBununyg  sajusybaly waynos
0o T pojyosd vasay  uoynd/uopBununy  sauayba|y wsynos
m_.. suops|dwio) vasgy  uoynd/uopBununyg  saiuaybal|y wayinos
0L6 DAAISS SjuBdDINRY  UOYNJ/UOPBURUNE  SPIURY DAY WeInos
PR DO [2207  UONNL/UCPBUUNE  sauayBs|ly ueyInos
" panag suelsysn euquien  salusyBa|y wepnes
6Lg 22195 PAPRY SNjeA euquey  sauayba||y wayines
Z8L  Pelyoid visTy euqwed  saiusyBa|y weyInos
g8 " suopaduo) yasay euquied  sawayBa|y uewyInes
€e6  panies siuedpiueq euqued  saiaybBa)y Welanos
280'L PG SO €50 euque)  sajuayba|y WAENOS
06 " panas sueIazep Jelg  sawaybayy wagnog
0SI'L  @0puSS PappY anjen Helg  sawayBs|ly wayInos
g8l pal30id vasay aeg sewayBaly Wayinos
yzl suona|dwoD ¥Is3Y nejg  sapuayBa|y wayinos
el panIas sjuediiLEg aelg  sawayBs|ly ulayinog
L08'L PRI IO 2907 ueg  seweyBay useyIngs
ve " panes SUBRIBIBA “pioypeg sewisyBayy wiayinos
pEe 301135 PIPPY aNjeA piojpag  saiuayBajly wWayInos
09 " peyold vasay piojpag  sawaybsy LIBYINOS
gz suone|dwoD v353x piojpag  sawaySay UayINos
8.5 panas siuedpieg piojpag  sowayBapy wiayinos
209 1RO SO (€307 piojpag  saiuayBally wayinos
AobBared v

wnoy  seamdas edipned asyo YaAM

J

\

saaybany waynos

/ VaMm B uolbay Ag sedialag Juedpipied 11y \

.

uotbay Aq sasialag juedidijed iy

£L8°EL [ejoL £L8'EL fesoL
652 paAnag suelaiep  sewaybeyy wayinos 662 DaNIeS SURIBA - LoIBaY (B1IaT) YInog
osL's aowaes pappy anjgn,  sewaybaly waynos 0g8Ls 20)M3S pappY anfea  uolBay [enua) ynos
195  pajyorg vIsy  sewaybaly wisyinog 195 palye.d vIS3Y uoiBay [enuad yinos
6.2 suonadwon vIsyy  sewaybayy usyinos 612 suoya|dwor vis3y uoibey [esuad) ynos
9z’ pamsssedppiey  sausyBaly weyinos gzzy pams siuedidjded  UoiBay |euaD Yanos
gee's PeIuoD 220 (2007 seluayBelly watpnos 828 1EIUOD a3YJ0 1907 UOIBaY [e13USD YINOS

Kiobaes v Arofisien v
WNGH saniues Juediney YAM, wnoD)  seoiaes Juediiued uoiboy

SBIBYBBITY LIIN0S

J




Ty jesor Y ™
2.9 sa0IARS J9Akojdwig [e3o]  uoynd/uopbununy  saiusybay wiayInos
6 s|ellajoy Jeis  uoynd/uopbupuny  seiusybaly UBYINOS
lE sjelajay Jjas  uoynd/uopbununy  saiuayBa|ly WIBYINos
Z 1fo uoynj/uopbununy  sawaybs||y ulsyinos
0 siafojdwg maN uojnd/uopbununy  sawayba||y ulayinos
A 90l sbuisod qor uojnd/uopbununy  ssiuayba)ly uiayinos
g€2 panas siafojdwy  uoynd/uopbununy  sa1usyba|ly UBYINOS
6L s9ouas Jakodwy [eloL euque)  saluayba|y ulaynos
I s[elia)oy Yeis euqued  seluayBa|ly uISLyINoS
| ot s|eLiasey oS euque)  saluayBally LIBINOS
7 0 10 euqued  saluaybally wayINos
, € siafo|dwz maN euque)  saaybapy ulaynos
#hE sbunsog qor euqued  saluayba||y Waynos
| 29 panias siakojdwg euqued  saluaybaly uaynos
, 26y seowmuas Jafojdwg jeoL Jejlg  sawayba)y uayinos
9 s|eLiasay Leis Jejg  sawaybalpy Wayinos
‘W YLY'L s|eliasay 48s nelg  sawayba|y Wisyinos
| o 10 Jejlg  sauaybally WalINos
W” 6 siafojdwz maN aelg  sawaybagy uaynos
255 sbunsod gor Jelg  ssiuaybaj|y ueYINos
88l paniag siakojdwg Jielg  sawayba|y WiBYINos 8L8L 1oL 8L8'L lesoL
19 saowuas sakojdws [eroL plojpeg  saluayBajly WBYIN0S 296'L  sedmuss Jafodw [egoL  saluayba|ly ulayInos 296'L S90S Jakojdw [e30]  uoibay [eus) yinos
6L s|eLa)3y Heis piojpag  salusyBa||y wayInos bel Siumsy RS seletfeilviuisUIfoS LEL seia}ay yeis uoibay [eusd YINos
£9¢ s|eualy 13 piojpag  saluayBa|ly wiaynos S09°¢ s|euajay Jjas  saluaYba|ly uiaLInos 509 S|eus)ay J3S  uoibay [enua) yInos
L 100 piojpeg  saluayba|ly WBLINOS n 160 ssusifely wisnos vl 110 uoibay [eAua) Lanos
0 s1afojdwa maN piojpag  saluayBa|ly Waynos 8L siafojdwiz maN - s3IUBYB3||y UBLINOS 8L s1afoidwz maN  uoibay [equa) yinos
08L sBusod qor piojpag  saluayBal|y WayInos ser'L sbupsod qor  sa|uayB3|Y LiAyNOS szl sBuisod qor uoibay [e4us) YINoS
ssL panlas siakojdwg piojpag  saiuayBs||y WsyINos geL panias sisfojduiy  sapuayBa)ly wayinos €z panas siafojdws  uoibay |enuad) YyINos
Aobajed v Kiobaye fiobBajed M
WnoD)  S9dIAS Ssaulsng 82140 Yam WROD  SRDIAISS SRUIRg vam JUNO)  SJIAIAS SSaUISNg uoibay
saayBa)ly waynos stuaybally uiayinos saiuaybajy LIBYIN0S

AN /

uoibay Aq sad1n18S ssaulsng 1Y

321140 B VAM 'U0IB3y Aq S921A13S Ssauisng 11y \/ VOM 73 UoiB5Y Aq 5921135 SsSuisng IV




818'L [e30L
796°'L  $9310RS Jakojdws 2100
LEL  seusjsy geis
509'  sjeusyEy 4PS
R T
8L siafojdwg maN
syl sbunsod qor
€zl panses sieAojdwg
fioBaze)

uRoD S9IAIBS SsouUIsnNg

10101 YHDAMUGLILIOD

/ SadAIRG ssaulsng (Y \

-

172438 |esoL
662 - . . D3NS SURIDION
0g8L'e 351UaS POPPY SN[EA
oe T sl vasy
6.2 suonadwo) yIsay
92y PpoARS suedpiey
8ze's 1EIIGD B0 jE307]
Aobaies

wnod  saones Juedpiieyd
10261 YIjD8MUOLILLIOT

sao1A425 Juedidiled 1y J




